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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE _
DEE’ARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES '
Lari A, Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

Commissioner 603-271-4451  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4451
Fax: 603-271-4729  TDD Access: 1-800-738-2964  www.dhbs,nh.gov

Marie E. Noonan
Interisn Dirzctor

June 3, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T, Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth and
Families, to enter into a Sole Source amendmant to an existing contract with America’s Youth
Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc. (VC#166581), Manchester, NH to continue to
provide competency and credit earning tutoring to Sununu Youth Services Center (8YSC), by
exercising a contract renewat option by increasing the price limitation by $250,000 from $400,000
to $650,000 and extending the completion date from June 30, 2024 to June 30, 2025, effective
July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on November 22, 2022, item
#33A,
Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2025, with the authority

to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
* through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-421510-66430000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF HHS: SUNUNU YOUTH SERVICES CENTER; SYSC HB2 91:327 ‘

State Increased s
Class / Job Current Revised
Fiscal Class Title {Decrensad} |
Year Account Number Budget Amount Blfdget
: . Grant for | $150,000 $0 | $150,000
2023 | 074-500589 | Pub Asst& | 42151705
Grantfor . $250,000 | $0 1  $250,000
2024 | 074-500589 | PubAsst& | 42151705
Rel : _ .
' . Grant for $0 $250,000 1 $250,000
2025 | 074-500589 | PubAsst& | 42151705 '
Ret :
Total $400,000 $280,000 | $650,000
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Hig Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
_and the Honorable Council
Page 2of2

" EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements

. originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source, The Contractor has expertise

in providing educational services to support youth similar to the population at SYSC and provides

a continuum of care that is critical for these youth, which includes continuing services upon
‘release from SYSC, re-integrating youth into their home communities. . '

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue to provide comprehensive, -
engaging and individualized secondary educational service, post-secondary planning, career |
exploration, and employment training services to youth at SYSC in order to aid in development of
skills, goals and support the provision of Free and Appropriate Public Education. The Contractor
supports with the completion of academics for obtaining a high school diploma or HiSet;

Approximately 18 individuals will be simultaneously served throughout State Fiscal Year
2025, )

The Cantractor will continue to work collaboratively with the Department staff to provide
youth a combination of direct instruction and tuloring for developing competency and credit
eaming. The Contractor collaborates with high schools, employers, colleges and social service
agencies to provide a holistic approach to serving youth based on individual needs, as well.as
support wrap-around community-based supports to youth returning home from SYSC through the

_in-school youth programs through the New Hampshire school systems.

The Departmant will monitor services by ensuring:

o 90% of youth receiving educational services will make measurablé progress towards
their education goals as determined by their school district. :

e 100% of IEP/504 plans for youth will be supported by the contractor and adhere to
IEPs/504s, including attendance to IEP/504 Meetings and the development of
IEP/504 revisions. . S

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the original
agreement, the parlies have the option to extend the agreement for up to five (5) additionat years,
centingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval, The Department is exercising its option to renew setrvices for one
(1} of the five (5) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, youth at SYSC will not receive
the support and/or educational needs outlined in their IEP and the support nesded to transition
suc__ce_ssfuliy back into their communily and school systems. .

.o+ Area served: Sununu Youth Services Center
Respactiully suppmitted,

0

Lori A, Weaver f=
Commissioner

The Deportment of Heolth and Human Services” Mission is Io join communities and familics
. #n praviding opporiunities for citizens lo achieve health and independenco,
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Competency and Credit Eaf'ning Tutoting contract is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State” or "Department")y.and America’s
Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc. ("the Contractor”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on November 22, 2022 (Item #33A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon. the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of ceftain sums specified; and '

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form. P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written:
agreement of the parties.and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and.

NOW THEREFC)RE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto. agree to amend as follows:

S

#orm P;37’Genera| Provisions, 'Block 1.7, Completion‘ Date, to read:

June 30, 2025

Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$650,000 .

Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services Section 1.6., to read:

1.6. The Contractér must collaborate with the Department and sending school districts to ensure
all Individualized Educational Plan (IEP) and 504 plans for youth are supported and adtiered
to. . v s

Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services Section 1.7., to read:

1.7. The Contractor must work collaboratively with the Department staff to provide a minimum of
four (4) to five (5) educators, during normal school: hours, five days & week, to provide and
support educationalfvocational services to all youth at SYSC. ‘

Modify Exhibit B, Scopé of Services, Section 1.22.1.1,, to read:

1.22.1.1. 90% of youth receiving educational services will make measurable progress towards their
education goals as determined by their school district.

Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms Section 3., to read:

3. Payment shall be -on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreément, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget Sheet through C-3, Budget Sheet ~ Amendment #1.

Add Exhibit C-3, Budget Sheet — Amendment #1, which. is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein. : ' ) ) S

America's Youth Teenage Unemploymen.l Reduction

. = : ’ - . DS
_ Network, Iné. _ A-S5-1.3 - ' Contractor Initials ::—

SS-2023,-DCY§F-12-COlV[PE-01-A01 | Page 1 of 3 Date

v7.12.23

6/4/2024 -



DocuSign Envelopé I 560CAF2:D-D126-4E72-AF20-50C3E94CA5FT

All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WIT[\IESS WHEREOQF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DocuSigned by:

6/4/2024 MW\}{_N&J\G\U\
Date Nara e MarTe -Noonan
' Title: DCYF Interim Director

America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction

Network, Inc.
) DocuSigned by:
6/4/2024 ‘ Alison. josuf(x,
Date ‘ " Name: ATTis8n Joseph
: ' . Title:  executive Director
America’s Youth Teenaga Unemploymént Reduction
Network, Inc. ‘ A-5-1.3
$8-2023-DCYF-12-COMPE-01-A01 Page 2 of 3

V. 7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and

« execution. ‘ )
* OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
DocuSigned by:
6/6/2024 _ | iy Gonino
Date Name: "GUArino

Title:  Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: . - (date of meeting)
4 o

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date ' Name:
Title:

America's Youlh Teenage Unemployment Reduction
Network, Inc. A-5-1.3

5§8-2023-DCYF-12-COMPE-01-A01 < Page3of3
v.7.12.23
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Exhibit C-3, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1

New Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Ameri'ca ;‘5’ Yb'ﬂth“’l’ee'hagé*l]hém;}

Budget Request for:|

- Budget Penod

indirect Cost Rate (if appfscahle)

1. Salary & Wages
2. Fringe Benefils
3. Consulfanis
4. Equipment
lIndirect cost rate cannot be applied fo
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.
5.(a) Supplies - Educational
5.(b) Supplies - Lab
3.{¢) Supplies - Pharmacy
5.(d) Supplies - Medical
5{e) Supplies Office
6. Travel .
7. Software ) ; , R T i O
8. (g) Other - Marketing/ Communications M R eI S TR
8. (b) Other - Education and Training S R S S T
8. (c¢) Other - Other (specify below)
Other {please specify)
Other {please specify)
Other (please specify)
Other (please specify)
9. Subrecipient Contracts
Total Direct Costs

Total Indirect Costs

TOTAL

us
Confractor Initials: e ™

$8-2023-DCYF-12-COMPE-01-A01 Date; ©/4/2024
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

"1, David M. Scanian, Secretary of Statfe of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE
UNEM:PLOMM REDUCTION NETWORK, INC. is a Massachusetfs Nonprofit Corporation registered to fransact business in
New Hampshire on April 07, 2004, T farther certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have

been receivéd and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business 1D: 471109
Certificate Number: 0006687637 . -

IN, TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 herelo set my hand and canse to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hanipehire,
this [3th day of May AD, 2024.

,

David M. Scanlan ' -

Secretfary of State
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Certificate of Authority # 1 k {Corporation, Non-Profit C‘o:}pﬂm::‘an)

I, Birtley Locke, hereby certify that I am duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of
(Name)

America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc.. I hereby certify the following
(Name of Corporation)

is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and

held on November 18, 2023,
at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting,

VOTED: That Allison Joseph, Executive Director (may list more than one person) is
(Name and Title)

duly authorized to enter into contracts or agreements on behalfof

America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc. with the Statc of New
(Name of Corporation )

Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to
execute aziy documenfs which may in his/her jﬁdgment be desirable or r;ecessary
_to effect the purpose of this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force
and effect as of the date of the con%ract to which this certificate is attached. This auth’ority
remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Corporate Resolution. I further certify |
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that
the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the exteng that there are any limits on the authority of any

listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
4 _

limitations are expressly stated herein. | ‘
DATED: 05/13/2024 A?TESW/@
ANEe & Titte) = '

Seecetary
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A,COM}“ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE [ oA amosrm

6472024

THIS CERTIFICATE 18 1SSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: W the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poficy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL ihESURED provisions or be endorsed.
if SUBROGATION 18 WAIVED, subject fo the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate haider In lisu of such endorsement(s}. -

PRODUCER nd . %ggg i}C.‘{
& Mel C- Englan BlGHE
T o e ennan agency LLC - New Eng PO o 868.850.0400 (2% nox: 8667958016
Worcester MA 01608 Somess; MMANewEngland Cert@marshine com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAKCH
msyrer A : Philadelphia Insursnce Company 23850
HISURED ) AMERIYOUTHIY : Hanover Service Center - 22202
America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment HSURERY . g
Reduction Network, Inc. HEURERC :
1019 Crescent Street INSURERD :
Brockton MA 02301 ' INSURER E 2
: IHSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; 51685370 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE SEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERICD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE 1SSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TRESTT ACDL[SUBR] PHEY POLECY EXP
LR TYPE OF INSURANCE MSD] wun POLICY NUMBER gamcmv%) MIDEAYYY) : LTS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK2577083 82412023 Bi242024 | pACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,060,000
. ["DARATE TORERTED
| cLams mane X | occur 7 PREMISES (E3 occurrencs) | $100,000
Lo MED EXP (Any one person) $ 50,000
] PERSONAL & ADVINEIRY | 51,000,000
| GENT. AGGREGATE LIMIT APLIES PER: . GENERAL AGGREGATE - | 33,000,000
| Jeouer[ 5B e - © | PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | 53,000,000
OTHER: COMBINED SINGLETIIT >
A | AuToucaILELIABILITY PHPK2377089 BI2412023 | Br2472024 | EMORESS 51,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person} | S
|| OWNED SCHEDILED
I VO I BODLY IIURY (Pes acctnt|
X | autosonmy | X | AUTOS GNLY {Per accicent) L%
5
A _.}E,— AUMBRELIAHIAR | |oceus PHUBB72380 812412025 BI2412024 | EACH OCCURRENCE % 1,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAMS-MADE AGGREGATE § 1,000,000
o0 | X | Rerenmion's 10 00g - - )
5 [WORKERS COMPENSATION WZNH241781 23 | ez (X 1
ARD EMPLOYERS' LIABILATY viN , 6 823420 o2 |shanure |28
ANYPROPRIETORPARTNEREXECUTIVE E L EACH ACCIDENT 1,000,800
OFFICERMEMBEREXCLUDED? NiA -
[Mandstory Bi;:e NH} . £.1. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| § 1,000,000
i f der
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bitow £ L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS | LOUATIONS | VEHICLES [ACORD 101, Addifiona) Remarks Schedule, nay bie attached If ore spte is redpired}
RE: dba MY TURN EIN #22-2565777. .

CERTIFICATE HOLDER ) CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED N

State of New Hampshire ACCORDANGE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Department of Health and Huaman Services

129 Pleasant Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord NH 03301-3857 =T )

%

)

!

©1988.2015 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016103) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD )
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America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network

Vision:

We envision a world where all individuals, regardless. of circumstance, know they
are valued and respected; have access to high quality academic and employment
opportunities; and have the support necessary to achieve success and fulfillment to

the benefit of their communities.

Mission:

We work to unleash the full potentiél in people, regardless of circumstance, helping
them chart a course to a bright future. We serve youth, adults and families
throughout New England at transitional points in their lives by offering
comprehensive career services and academic support. We remove critical barriers

| impacting their success, all with a holistic, on-going approach that supports ¢éach

individual client.
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AMERICA’S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT
REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
d/b/a MY TURN, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

(WITH ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTF)
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AMERICA’S YdUTH TEENAGE =UNEMPLOY;MENT

REDUCTION NETWORK, INC,

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditors’ Report

Financié'l Statements:
Statements of Financial Position
Staternents of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

‘Statements .of Cash, Flows
Statements of Functional Expensés

Notes to Financial Statements

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards -

N

Independent Auditors’ Repon on Comphance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compllance
Required by the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

1-3

~N oA

8-15

16

17-18.

19-21



‘DecusSign Envelupe ID: 5600AF2D D126-4E72- AF20 SCC3EQ4CASFT

Bruce D Norlmg, CPA P C

‘INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

- To the Board of Directors of : , _
' "~ -America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the .accompanying financial statements of America’ s'Youth Teenage
Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc. (a nonprofit Organization), which comprise the
- statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 and the related statements of

-activities and changes in net assets, functlonal expenses, and cash flows for the years then™ ,

ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Organization as.of June 30, 2022, the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting pnnmples generally accepted
in the United States of America:

Basis for Opinion

- We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Our responsibilitiés under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Organization andto meet our other.ethical responsibilities,

* in.accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufflc:Ient and appropriate to provide a basis for our.
audit opinions,

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation ahd fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United:States
of America;, and forthe design, implementation, and maintenance of interhal ¢ontrol relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or efrror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ob]ectlves are to obtain reasonable asslrance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
-an auditor's report that in¢ludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit

- - .
410 Boston Post Road, Suite 24 + Sudbury, MA 01776 © (978-443-9114)
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conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or .
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted audltmg standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an' opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

‘s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
v significant accounting estimates made by management, as well.as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying

- accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements orto
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the financial statements as a whole.
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. Other Reporting Requ'ired by GovernmentA'uditing- Standards -

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
August 31, 2023 on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial
Teporting and on our tests -of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other-matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results ‘of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report’is an
" integral part of an audit performed. in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Organization’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Bruce D. Norling; CPA, P.C.

August 31,2023 -
Sudbury, Massachusetts

B



DocuSign Envelope ID: 560CAF2D-D126-4E72-AF20-5CC3E94CASF7

AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK lNC
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

- 2022 2021

ASSETS .
" CURRENT ASSETS

Cash & Cash Equivalents : $ 403,139 $ 260,967
Accounts Receivable 115,606 151,210
Prepaid Expenses 695 1,261
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS ’ 519,440 413,438

FIXED ASSETS . :
Software 1,658 1,658
Computer Equipment 7,882 7,882
Office Equipment : 23,040 ~23,040
Furniture and Fixtures | 2,091 2,091
- Less: Accumulated Depreciation (34,671) __ (34,671)
TOTAL NET FIXED ASSETS | - _ -

OTHER ASSETS .

Deposits . 12,425 12,425
TOTAL ASSETS a ‘ $ 531,865 $ 425863

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES ‘
Accrued Expenses ‘ $ 35,438 $ 14,481

Accrued Payroll and Related Expenses 57,296 43,111

PPP Loan.Payable . 243,077 243,077
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES - 335,811 : . 300,669

NET ASSETS .

With Donor Restrictions ' 193,165 122,333

Without Donot Restrictions _ - 2,889 - , 2,861

TOTAL NET ASSETS - 198,054 125,194

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 531,865 % 425,863

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4
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PUBELIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES
Contributions
Grants
Federal and State funding
Conated Services and Space
Interest Income ‘
Net Assets Released from Restrictions
TOTAL

EXPENSES
Administration
Fundraising
Program Services

TOTAL

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, Beginning of Year

NET ASSETS, End of Year

AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, ING.
STATEMENTS OF ACTVITIES AND CHANGES IiN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021
WITHOUT DONOR WITH DONOR WITHOUT DONOR WITH DONOR
RESTRICTIONS RESTRICTIONS: TOTAL RESTRICTIONS RESTRICTIONS TOTAL

138,603 $ - 138,603 27,010 $ 144,000 171,010

341,335 193,165 534,500 13,000 - 13,000
1,588,508 - 1,588,508 1,601,715 - 1,601,715

93,720 - 93,720 46,680 - - 46,680

115 - 115 15 - 15

122,333 (122,333) - 65,185 (65,185) -
2,284,614 70,832 2,355,446 1,753,605 78,815 1,832,420
271,570 - 271,570 236,321 - 236,321

13,704 - 13,704 222 - 222

1,999,312 - 1,999,312 1,673,079 - 1,673,079

2,284 586 - 2,284,586 1,909,622 - 1,909,622
28 C70,832 70,860 (156,017) 78,815 {77,202)

2,861 122,333 125,194 158,878 43,518 202,306

2,889 $ 193,165 196,054 2,861 $ 122,333 125,194

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
- STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE, 30 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ‘
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets. $ 70,860 $ (77,202)
Adjustments to Reconcile.Changes in Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities:
Changes in Operating Assets:
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 35,604 30,747
{Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 566 (390)
- Changes in Operating Liabilities: ] '
Increase {(Decrease) in Accrued Expenses 35,142 8,025
Net Cash From Operating Activities 142,172 (38,820)
CASH FLOWS FROM (used in) FINANCINGINVESTING ACTIVITIES
Security Deposits - (5,551)
- (58,551)
CASH FLOWS FROM (used in) FINANCING ACTIVITIES v ’
Advances on Line of Credit 150,000 150,000
Repayments on Line of Credit (150,000) (150,000)
PPP Loan payable . - 243,077 -
Net Cash From (used in) Financing Activities - 243,077
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ' 142,172 198,706
CASH, Beginning of year 260,967 62,261
CASH, End of year $ 403,139 3 260,967
SUPPLEMENTAL. DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW:
Interest Paid $ 149 "% 991

The accémpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

2022
y Administration Fundraising Program Services Total
Salaries and benefits $ . 82,263 3 : - 3 1,468,514 3 1,650,777
Qccupancy - 168,253 - 139,963 308,216
Supplies and support 2,836 13,704 390,835 407,375
Consultants and proféssional fees , 18,218 - - 18,218
Totals 3 271,570 $ 13,704 $ 1,999,312 5 2,284,586
2021
Adminisfration Fundraising Program Services Total
Salaries and benefits 3 86,973 $ - 3 1,258,986 $ 1,345,959
Occupancy " 134,362 - 76,023 210,385
Supplies and support 1,986 222 338,070 340,278
Consultants and professional fees 13,000 - L= 13,000
Totals $ 236,321 $ 222 "% 1,673,079 $ 1,909,622

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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AMERICA’S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction
Network, Inc. have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The significant accounting policies
followed are described below to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements to the
reader.

Nature of Activities ‘
America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc. (the Organization) is
committed to assisting youth develop goals, skills and the confidence needed to transition
successfully into post-secondary education or training and the world of work by providing
school-to-career services. The Organization operates in partnership with a wide range of
colleges and universities, as well as with government agencies at the local, state and
‘national levels.

All of the Organization’s services are provided to eastern Massachusetts and southern
New Hampshire residents. The following program divisions are listed in order of relative
importance based upon total program expenditures:

In-School and Out-of-School Youth — The In-School division provides youth, ages 14 to
21 who are currently in high school, the opportunity to develop strategies and tools and
gain practical life skills to overcome obstacles and barriers to complete high school. The
Out-of-School Youth division assists youth, ages 16 to 24 who are high school dropouts
and/or unemployed, in developing strategies and tools and gaining life skills and work
experience needed to overcome obstacles and harriers to employment through working
with employers who can provide young adults with work-based learing experiences and
permanent jobs as well as-mentoring, supervision and on-going training to succeed in the
work place. In addition, the Organization provides higher education readiness
opportunities and school training and education preparation for first generation college
bound students for success in college.

Manufacturing Training Programs — The Manufacturing Training Programs are similar to
the Out-of-School Youth Programs, but focus exclusively on preparing highly motivated
young individuals for exciting careers in manufacturing through partnerships with several
local industry partners.

Adult Préqrams - Our Adult Division provides academic instruction in preparation for HiSet
& GED testing. Additionally, services are provided to adults who are pursuing post- -
secondary credentials and career ladder employment.

Revenue Recognition

Grants and contracts and program service fees are recognized as revenue as services
are provided. Conditional promises to give and grants with stipulations that limit the use
of the assets are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, when the
barrier(s) in the agreement are overcome. A contribution is conditional if an agreement
includes a barrier that must be overcome and either a right of return of assets transferred

8
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AMERICA’S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

ora right of release of a promisor’s obllgatlon to transfer assets emsts The presence of
both a barrier and a right of return or right of release indicates that a recipient is not
entitled to the contribution until it has overcome the barrier(s) in the agreement. All other
revenue is recorded when earned.

The Organization records grants, gifts and contributions as net assets with donor

. restrictions if they are received with stipulations that limit the use of the assets. When a
donor “restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities and changes in net
assets as net assets released from restrictions. Restricted: contributions received where -
related restrictions are met in the same reporting period are classified as unrestricted
revenue, :

The Organization earns revenue as follows:

Contracts — Contract revenue is earned and. recognized by the Organization when
services are provided and billed under various agreements funded primarily by
governmental agencies.” All contracts are cost-reimbursement contracts, all with ceiling ~
amounts. Under cost-reimbursement contracts, revenue recognition takes place as costs
related to the services provided are incurred. Billings on the contracts are subject to fna[
approval by the governmental agency.

Grants — The Organization records .grant revenue over the period of the award and the
provisions of the grant determine the timing ‘'of revenue recognition. Amounts that have
been received but not earned are included in deferred revenue.

Program Service Fees — Program service fee revenue is earned and recognized by the
Organization when services are provided and billed.

PPP_Loan = The Organization accounts for forgivable Loans (Paycheck Protection
Program) as debt in accordance with ASC470. The forgiveness of debt, in whole or in
part, is legally released from the liability by the SBA When debt is forgiven, it's recorded
as Gain on Extinguishment of Debt, and presented .on the Statement of Activities.

Accounts Receivable '

The Organization carries |ts accounts receivable at an amount equal to unco[lected but
earned revenue less an allowance for doubtful accounts. On a periodic basis, the
Organization evaluates its accounts receivable and establishes an allowance for doubtful
accounts, based on an assessment of collectablhty As of June 30, 2022, management
has determined no allowance for doubtful accounts is necessary.

Basis of Presentation '

The financial statéments report net assets and changes in net assets in two classes that
are based upon the existence or absence of restrictions placed on use by its. donors as
follows: .
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AMERICA’S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions: '

Net assets without donor restrictions are resources available to support operations. The
only limits-on the use of these net assets are the broad limits resulting from the nature of
the Organization, the environment in which-it operates, the purposes specified in its
corporate documents -and its application for tax-exempt status, and any limits resulting.
from contractual agreements with creditors and others that-are entered into in the course
of its operations.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are resources that are restrlcted by a donor for use for
a particular purpose or in a particular future period. Some donor-imposed restrictions are
temporary ‘in nature, and the restriction will expire when the resources are used in
accordance with the donor’s instructions or when the stipulated time has passed. Other
donor-lmposed restrictions are perpetual in nature; the organization must continue to- use
the resources in accordance with the donor’s restrictions,

When a donor's restriction is satisfied, either by using the resources. in the manner
- specified by the*donor or by the passage of time, the expiration of the restriction is
-reported in the financial statements by reclassifying the net assets from net assets with
donor restrictions to. net assets without donor restrictions. Net assets restricted for

acquisition of building or equipmerit (or less commonly, the contribution of those assets

directly) are reported as net assets with donor restrictions until the specified asset is
placed in service by the Organization, unless the donor provides more specific dlrectrons
about the period of its use.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use
of the related assets is limited by donor-imposed restrictions and/or time restrictions.
Revenues are reported as net assets without donor restrictions if thé donor-imposed -

restrictions are‘met in the same reporting périod. Expenses are reported as decreases -

- in net assets without donor restrictions. The statement of activities reports all changes in
' net assets, including changes in net assets without donor restrictions from operating -
activities. ‘ :
Nonprofit Status and Income Taxes -
America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reductlon Network Inc. qualifies: as an
organization formed for charitable purposes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
‘Revenue Code and, therefore, is not subject to income tax. The Organization is not a
- private foundation under Section 509(a)(1). Certain unrelated business income as
defined in the Internal Revenue Code, is subject to federal income tax. For the year
ended June 30, 2022, there was no liability for. tax on unrelated business income.

The Organization is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are
currently no audits for any tax periods in progress. The Organization's federal and state
income-tax returns are geherally open to examination for the last three years.

v
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AMERICA’S YOUTH TEENAGE -UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, lNC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Fundraising - '
Fundraising relates to the activities of raising general and specn‘" ¢ contributions to the

‘Organization and promoting special events..

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on
a functional basis in the statement of activities and in the statement of functional
“expenses. Directly identifiable expenses are charged to programs and supporting
services. Expenses related to more than orie function are allocated to programs and
supporting services. Administration expenses include those expenses that are not
directly identifiable with any other specific function but provide for the overall support and
direction of the Organlzatlon Occupancy costs. are allocated, to functions based upon
full-time equivalents. Payroll and associated costs are allocated based on time studies.

“Advertising Costs .
The Organization expenses advertlsmg costs when they are incurred. Adveftising
expense was immaterial for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Use of Estimates

In preparing the Organlzatlons financial statements in conformity with accountlng
principles. generally accepted in the United States of America, management is required
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and -
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period.. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers: all highly Irqwd lnvestments purchased with an original
maturity of three months or less fo be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its
cash deposit balances in banks located in.Massachusetts. The Organization’s balances
occasmnally exceed those limiits. Management feels there is no risk as the chance of Ioss-
is remote.

Fixed Assets and AmortlzatlonlDepreCIatlon '

‘Fixed assets are recorded at cost or, if donated, fair value on the date of recelpt

Amortization and depreciation are provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the ¢ost of
depreciable assets to operations over their estimated service lives. Improvements,

including planned major maintenance activities are capitalized, while -expenditures for
routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. The Organization
computes amortization and depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful life.

Donated ltems and Services

The Organization received donated program space (occupancy) amounting to $93, 720-"
and $46,680 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Amounts are

recorded at estimated reasonable rates of costs which would have been involved had the

facilities been rented.

1.
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AMERICA’S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK INC..
"~ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

Eair Value Measurements

The Organization determines the fair market values of its financial assets and liabilities,
- as well as non-financial assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value :
on a recurring basis, based on the fair value hierarchy established in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. This policy -establishes a fair value hierarchy
that prioritizes the inputs and assumptions used to measure fair value. The Organization
values its qualifying assets and liabilities using Level 1 inputs. Level 1 inputs reflect
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets at the measurement date.
. A qualifying asset or liability's leve! within. the framework is based upon the lowest level
of any input that is SIgnlfcant to the falr value measurement.

The Organlzatton is required to apply the provisions of U.S. generally accépted
accounting principles to fair value measurements for nonfinancial assets and liabilities
that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a non- recurring
basis. The Organization has no nonfinancial assets or liabilities required to be accounted
for on a non- recurrlng basis as of June 30, 2022.

Upcoming Accountmg Pronouncements

In ‘February 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The ASU's core
principle is to increase transparency and comparability’ among organizations by
recognizing leased assets and liabilities on the statements of financial position and
disclosing key information. ASU 2016-02 will be effective for fiscal years begmmng after
December 15, 2021, with early adoption permitted. -

' Management is currently evaluating the effect that these new standards will have. on the
Organization’s financial statements and related disclosures.

2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Finangial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other
restrictions limiting.their use, within one year of June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 are:

Finangial assets: - . 2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 3. 403,159 $ 260,967
Accounts Receivable o 115,606 151,210
Total financial assets . 518,745 412,177
Less: B
Net assets with donor restrictions 193,165 ' 122,333
Financial assets available to meet general :
Expenditures within one year: $ 325580 $ 289,844

The Organization has $325,580 of financial assets available W|th1n one year of the
balance sheet date to meet cash needs for general expenditures. None of the financial
assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions that make them unavailable

12
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AMERICA’S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK INC.
' NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ’
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

for general expenditure within one year of the balance sheet date. The Organization
keeps its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other
obligations come due. The Orgamzatlon has a goal of maintaining a cash balance of 30

days on hand to meet its normal operating expenses, which are, on-average, $190,382.

3. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAN LOAN

Prior to year-end, the Organization applied for and received a $243,077 loan under 'the
Paycheck Protection Program created as part of the relief efforts related to COVID-19
and administered by the Small Business Administration. MY TURN has recorded a note.
payable and will record forgiveness upon being legally reléased from the loan obligation.
Principal and interest payments. (at 1%) will be required through the maturity date of
February 1, 2026. The Organlzatlon has not yet received forglveness approval.

4, LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has available a demand line of credit with Rockland Trust Company (a
Massachusetts bank) of $100,000 to be drawn upon as needed, with interest at the bank’s
base lending rate plus 3.00%, or 5.75% as of June 30, 2022. The line is secured by the
Organization’s general business assets. The outstandmg balance on the line.of credit as’
of June 30,2022 and 2021 was $0.

5. '_LEASE,COMMITMENTS
The Organization leases office space at 80 Erdman Way in Leominster Massachusetts

as'well as 340 Granite St. in Manchester New Hampshire. The following is a schedule of
future minimum lease payments under the operating leases.

FY2023 $ 118,284
FY2024 120,204
FY2025 - 120,204
FY2026. " 113,067
S % 4AT1,759

All of the Organlzatlon s other locations are leased as tenant at will.
Rent expense s for the yedrs ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $152,878'and $118,644 -
respectwely

6. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
The Organization has a defined contribution pension plan.thatqualifies as_a tax-sheltered
account under Section. 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code for the benefit of eligible

employees. Salaried employées that are at least 21 years old are eligible to. participate:
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AMERICA’S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
'NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

_|n this plan upon hire. Under the plan, benefit ellglble employees -can invest pre-tax
dollars. The employees are not taxed on contributions or earnings until they receive
distributions from the account. The Organization made-no contributions under this plan
for 2022 and 2021. .

7. REVENUE

All'of the Organization's revenue is derived from its activities in Massachusetts and New

Hampshire. During the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. The Organization derived

approximately 10% and 9% of its total revenue from foundations and individual donors,
70% and 88% from governmental agencies and 20% and 3% from other sources,

respectively. -

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
There were no related party transactions during fiscal year 2022 or 2021.
9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES.

The Organization receives most of its funding from government agencies under cost
reimbursement programs. The ultimate determination of amounts received under these
programs generally is based upon allowablé costs reported to and audited by the
government. Until such audits, if any, have been completed, and final settlement -
reached, there exists a'contingency to refund any amount received in excess of allowable
costs. Management is of the opinion that no material liability will result from such audits.

The Organization’s operations are concentrated in the social service provider field. As
such, the Organization operates in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of
the Orgamzatlon are subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal,
state and local regulatory agencies. including, but not limited to the United States _
Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration passed through the New
Hampshire Department of Education. "

Such administrative directives, rules and regulatlons are subject to change by an act of
Congress, act of the state and local Ieglslature or an administrative change mandated: by
the government departments listed above. Such changes may occur with: little riotice or
inadequate funding to pay for the related cost, including 'the additional administrative: .
burden to comply with a change. Additionally, contractual funding may decrease or be
withdrawn with little notice.

10. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRlCTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of resources available to meet future
obligations, but only in compliance with the restrictions specified by donors. Donor
restrictions limit the use of thé resources to the youth programs for which they are
designated.

11. MANAGEIVIENT PLANS TO FINANCE OPERATIONS
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AMERICA’S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
o NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 -

Management of the Organization is aware of the net asset balance and has plans to
finance future operations. These plans include additional fundraising efforts and closely
monitoring expenses. Due to the untimely collection of receivables, the Organization has
a demand line of credit with Rockland Trust to be drawn upon if needed. Management
believes it has sought adequate resources for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 and

June.30, 2021 to support its operating budgets if needed.

. L
12.” SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization did not have.any recognized or non-recog nized subsequent events after
June 30, 2022, the date of the statement of financial position. Subsequent events have
been evaluated through August 31, 2023, the date the financial statements were available:
to be issued. e ' :
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AMERICA'S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMEN_T REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

FEDERAL y . TOTAL
FEDERAL GRANTOR / PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ PROGRAM TITLE "™ GFDA PASS-THROUGH SITITY IDENTIFYING  epeRaL AWARDS
NUMBER : EXPENDED
U.S DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION
Passed through the Bureau of Economic Affairs
WIAQO Cluster .
WIOA Youth Activities $ 1,141,271
Passed through North Cenfral Mass. Workforce Investment Board
WIOA Youth Activities N/A 177,650
TOTAL US DOL.,, WIOA Youth Activities, WIOA Cluster A 17.259 1,318,921
U.S DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION
Passed through State of New Hampshire Department of Education
Adult Edueaticn : B 84.002 06-56-56510-4095-102-500731 108,020
U.S DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT OFFICE OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELLOPMENT
Passed through City of Rochester, NH
Community Development Block Grants / Entilement Grants B 14.218 - N/A 24,000
CDBG Cares Act B 14.218.119 NIA 317
U.S DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE B - 16.609 33,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS ' $ 1,484,258

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the schedule) includes the federal grant activity of America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc.,
d/b/a’My Turn, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2022. The information in this schedule Is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Cede of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents
only a selected portion of the operations of My Tumn, it is not intended to and does not present financial position, changes in net assels, or cash flows of My Tum.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the acerual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain {ypes of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. My Turn has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

B. My Turn, Inc. identified the larger Federal Programs (Type A programs) as those programs that exceed $750,000. All other programs are labeled as Type B programs.
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Bruce D. Norling, CPA, P.C.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
"ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of° _ )
America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Nefwork, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial -audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
the financial statements of America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction
Network, Inc. (a nonprofit Organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities, and-cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated August 31, 2023.

i

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
Organization’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A matferial
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be preve}nted, or detected and. corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to_identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
havg not been identified. -
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is intended solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. ‘

Bruce D. Norling; CPA, P.C

August 31, 2023
Sudbury, Massachusetts
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Bruce D. Norling, CPA, P.C.

~ INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER.COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Dlrectors of :
America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network Inc.

Report-on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program .

" We have audited America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network, Inc.’ s (the
Organization) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Organization’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Organization’s’
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results sectlon of the
accompanying schedule of flndmgs and questioned costs, :

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect:on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022

Basis for Opinion on Each Ma_;or Federal Program

We conducted -our audit of compliance in accordance with audltmg standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Staindards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
‘United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audif Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audlt of
.Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be indepéndent of the Organization and to meét our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to prowde a
basis for our opinion on cempliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not
provide a° legal, determination of the Organization’s compliance with the compllance P
requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

' Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance -
with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements appllcab[e to the Organization’s federal programs.

Auditor’'s Respons:bmttes for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncomphance
with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error,

| 19 ‘ )
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and express an opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a -
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Organization’s compliancé with
the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
Govermment Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

» ldentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization’s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

o Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow managenient or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
controf over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance. .

20
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Our consideration of internal control over compliancé was for the limited purpose described

“in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not

designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
- weaknesses or significant deficiencies. in internal control over compliance. Given these

limitations, -dufing our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal conttol over

compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, .
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in mternal control over compllance may exist

‘that were not identified.

‘Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on-the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on intermnal control over compliance is solély to déscribe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the: results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

" Bruce D. Norling; CPA, P.C

August 31,2023
Sudbury, Massachusetfs
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AMERICA’S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT
REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 :

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

1.

The auditors’ report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial
statements of America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction

Network, Inc. (the Organizationh).

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements
are reported in the ]ndependent Auditors’ Report on Internal Confrol over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the
Organization were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award
programs are reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance

- for Each Major Program and cn Internal Control over Compliance Required
" by the Uniform Guidance. '

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs
for the Organization expresses an unqualified opinion on all major federal

programs.

Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Uniform .
Guidance are reported in this schedule.

The program tested as major program was:
U.S. Department of Labor: WIOA Youth Activities (CFDA #17.259)

The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000.
Type A programs are those that exceed $750,000. .

. The Organization was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT — NONE

C. FINDINGS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS — NONE
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AMERICA’S YOUTH TEENAGE UNEMPLOYMENT
REDUCTION NETWORK, INC.
N SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
: YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

'Prior Audit Findings: None ,
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America’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Network

Governing Board Membership
All Positions are Voluntarily Held

Barry Garside, President

3 years of service

Associate Vice President Acadermc Affairs,
Nashua Community College

Angel Burgado, Vice President
4 years of service Vice President
Community Partnership Manager,
Santander Bank

‘Butch Locke, Secretary

2 years of service

Strategic Operations Director,
BAE Systems

Anne Garside, Treasurer
3 years of service
Chief Actuary,

“Plymouth Rock Assurance

Justin Chauvin, Director

3 years'of service

Regional Commercial Sales Representative,
Builder Installed Products

Jennifer Conroy, Director

2 years of service

Senior Director, Americas Sales Strategy &
Operations, Sitecore

Andrew Davenport, Director
1 year of service -

Program Manager,
BAE Systems

Sara Dionne, Director
1 year of sexvice
Chief Learning Officer,
Comcast

Jon Mason, Director
6 years of service

Corporate Continuing Education Coordinator,
Nashua Community College

- Chris Picou, Director

1 year of service

Chief Technology Officer,

Measured Progress

Patrick Queenan, Director

5 years of service

Trial Attorney Criminal Division,
United States Department of Justice

Robin Remillard, Director
2 years of service
Realtor, Fast Key Realty

Lydia Zak, Director

I year of service

School Psychologist Consultant,

South Eastern Regional Educational Service
Center
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Allison Joseph

- Seasoned non pmf‘ 5t Executive Director with the abthlfy to clearly communicate needs and
expectations to staff-and partners. Skilled in creating and maintaining relationships with a
variety of stakeholders. Possessing strengths in the development and implementation of new
programs.

Employment:
Executive Director ' December 2013 - Present -
MY TURN, Incorporated

Manages a $4,000,000 budget including 82,300,000 in Federal Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act funds. Oversees 38 staff and operations at 20 sites throughout New
Hampshire and Massachusetts. All programs exceed federal and state performance
measures.

» Provides strategic leadership, including business planning, budget forecasting, and
board relations.
= Supervises and mentors direct service managers.
= Ensures successful program outcomes.
" Analyzes data to-drive-program improvements.
@ Researches best practices in areas related to youth education and employment.
= Develops key partnerships to advance the mission of the organization.
a  Responsible for all aspects of programming and operations including Human
. Resources, Finance, Information Technology, Program Evaluation, and Program
Management,
: Manages and conducts organizational fundraising including grant writing, event
planning, gift requests.

Deputy Director July 2013 — December 2013
MY TURN, Incorporated

Retained all responsibilities of the Director of Programs, NH Regzon Also performed the
Jollowing tasks:

5 Coordinated with CEO to Implement all adm1n1strat1ve strategies to ensure quality
programming. )

= Evaluated all financial statements. on monthly basis and analyze all trends.

= Assisted in the development.of all program grants and financial contracts.

= Participated in contract negotiations.

@ Assisted CEO in the oversight of employee benefits administration including: Health,
Dental, and 401(k)
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Director of Programs, NH Region . May 2011 - July 2013
MY TURN, Incorporated '

Maintained supervisory authority over all programming and staffing within 4 Programs in the
New Hampshire region. Coordinated community relations within the region, including job

development, public relations, and cultivation of partners. Also performed the following
tasks:

a  Secured the grant funding for all 4 Federal Workforce Investment Act programs.

* Ensured the achievement of benchmarks data collectmn/reportlng and contractual
obligations for-all NH programs

»  Ensured that all programs’ budgets were adhered to and that changes to those budgets,
including requests for movement of funds between specific line items, were properly
negotiated with relevant funders. '

» Provided effective supervision of staff within the region including; conducting regular
staff meetings, completion of performance reviews, creation and revision of
professional development plans with staff, orientation and training of staff, providing
oversight, guidance, and mentorship to staff coordinating staff' schedules and PTO
requests.

» Analyzed data to identify trends, best practices, and programmat1c challenges; used
data to strategically develop and implement program improvements.

= Developed and implemented mentorship program including recruitment and training
of new mentors in cooperation with the Greater Nashua Human Resource Association.”

Career Specialist, Manchester Central High School July 2007 = May 2011
MY TURN, Incorporated

Responsible for the recruitment and case management of 35+ low income, at risk.youth, and
Sfor the implementation of a Federal Workforce Investment Act funded academic and
employment training program including the following tasks:

m  Provided employment services and Work-Based Learning experiences.

= TFacilitated summer youth employment opportunities by developing jobs in the
community and oversaw youth employees. '

#  Created engaging curriculum to deliver educational/tutoring skills training.

s Developed citizenship and leadership development opportunities in the community.

= Directed student led Community Service-Learning Projects.

* Provided additional support services and twelve months of follow-up services to each

@ - participant,

s Maintained required documentation and reported information as set forth by State and

- Federal

B requirements.

@  Met or exceeded set Performance Measures as set forth by State and Federal funders.

v Maintained all contract requirements between MY TURN and the Bureau of Work
Force Development/State of NH Department of Education.
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Education: .
Excellence in Governance Certificate _ November 2016
NH Center for Nonprofits ) “

Certified Entreprencurship Teacher December 2008
Network for Teaching Entrepreneurship, Bentley University, Waltham, MA
Bachelor of Arts in Sociology December 2006
Saint Anselm College, Goffstown, NH
Leadership & Awards: ,
CompStat360 Gun Violence Problem Solving Team (Manchester) 2021 —Present
Trustee, Blue Knights Foundation 2017 — Present
NH HB4 Work Group on the Benefits CIiff (appointed by Governor Sununu) 2020 —2022 -
NHEH Race & Equity: Economic Development Work Group 2018 -2022
NH Youth Interagency Directors’ Group 2018 -2021
Business & Industry Association— NH Advantage Award 2019
Union Leader NH 40 Under Forty Award 2016
Created Assessment Tools for all NH WIOA Programs 2015
NH Shared Youth Vision Teams:

Manchester Area : , Member 2007 —2013; Co Chair 2010-2013

Concord Area Memiber 2012 —=2013; Co Chair 2012 — 2013
Manchester NH Mayor’s Youth Jobs Group © o 2012-2013
Outstanding Teacher; NH WZID Teacher Appreciation Week 2011
Heads Together Conference; Presenter: Interagency Collaboration _ 2009

Distinction in Core Values Award, MY TURN, Inc. 2008
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JOANN SMITH

OBJECTIVE

~ To obtain a position that would allow me to utilize my vast hiunan service knowledge, while
_helping others in my cominunity become the best versions of themselves

EXPERIENCE

2014 — PRESENT
WIC/CSFS RECI‘PTIONI‘H SOUTHERN NH.SERVICES.

o Answer phones for all Hillsborougli and Rockingham County clients ,
Sehedule appointments for all Hillsborough and Rockingham County clients
Assigt clients with transferring services in and out of the state
Issue vouchers, clinic intake, and provide voucher education
Assist coordination of services for breastfeeding clients
Schedule interpreters
Assist clients with finding resources to meet their individual needs

o Facilitate client flow ic ensure clients are seen in a timely manner
20112014
BREASTFEEDING PEER COUNSELOR AND CLINIC TECH, SOUTHERN NH
SERVICES

o Counsel pregnant and postpartum women on the benefits of breastfeedirig
e Issue and track electric breast pumps
o Promote the benefits of breastfeeding within the agency and commumty
o  Scheduling client appointment -
e Issue vouchers, clinic intake, and provide voucher edication
2009 - 2011, ‘
TEFAP COORDINATOR, SOUTHERN NH SERVICES
o Supervise TEFAP distribution
Schedule TEFAP distribution _
o Maintain inventory reports from the recipient agencies
Transfer Clients in and out of the program
2007 -- 2009
PART TIME OFFICE SUPPORT, SOU’I’HERN NH SERVICES
¢ Answer phones
o Schednle appointments
o Complete other general office tasks as needed

2007 - 2008 |
SUMMER FOOD, SOUTHERN NH SERVICES

¢ O & ¢ @ 6

(]

[+]
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¢ Prepare Meals
e Supervise Kitchen Staff
* Deliver food to staff
2006 - 2010 o
SCHOOL AGE SITE DIRECTOR, BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF MANCHESTER
o Directed after-school program for elementary school students
* Coordinated and implemented daily activities for children
o Maintained program files
o Scheduled Staff

¢ Facilitated all parent contact:

EDUCATION
Manchester Community College
" Business and Early Childhood Education Studies
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Samier Caceres

Key Qualifications
Critical Thinking- The ability to think clearly and find a solution in high stress situations.
Multi-Tasking- Able to take on multiple tasks and complete them with proficiency.
Leadership skills- Willing to do what is best for the company by communicating with co-workers:and
supervisors. Able to speak publicly and communicate in English and Spanish:Fluently.
Organized and Driven- Able to stay organized in high stress, high paced situations. Proficient in Microsoft
Office Suite and Phone Etiquette.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE ' -

House of Restoration
IT Support ) i
January 2018- April 2022

o Troubleshooting hardware and software issues
Repairing hardware issues
Building new machines
Created and Managed Facebook Page
Increased viewership by 120% in 6 months
Created content ’
Created and managed public relationships with other Churches.

® & & & © @

Byrider NH
Sales and Program Consultant
August 2018- Present

o Understands automobiles by studying characteristics, capabilities, and features; comparing
competitive models; inspecting automobiles.

o  Develops buyers by maintaining rapport with previous customers; suggesting trade-ins; meeting
prospects at community activities; greeting drop-ins; responding to inquiries; recommending
sales campaigns and promotions. ‘

o Works with buyers by analyzing buyer's requirements and interests; matching requirements to
the :
company program

¢ Calculate customer budget with customer provided expenses. _

o Create Social Media presence by creating a company Facebook page and marketing new sales

" products.

e Updates job knowledge by participating in educational opportunities; reading professional
publications. ) :

o  Enhance dealership reputation by accepting ownership for accomplishing new and different
requests; exploring opportunities to add value to job accomplishments.

e. Responsible for general vehicle maintenance of lot ready vehicles {gas tanks kept full, car
batteries intermittently run, snow removal, atc.)

Achievement: Salesman of the month 14 months consecutively

Music and Sound manager (Part-Time)
November 2018- April 2022
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Sound engineer and Content Creator
o  Prep Center Stage

@  Maintain sound quality
¢  Social Media sound and Livestream setup
o  Music Engineer
@ (Creator
SIXTH GRADE, MASTRICOLA UPPER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL Manchester, NH
Teacher Observations/ Assistant Sept. 2016- Dec. 2016
© Observed and took notes on teacher instruction
o Created lesson plans based on instruction observed
o Assisted with instruction
e One on One with students to help them with math
EDUCATION
Manchester Highschool West
Diploma Manchester, NH
Southern New Hampshire University 2014
Expected Diploma 2021 Manchester, NH
VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES |
CAFE 1269 ‘

Dec 2016- 2018
Served the homeless nutritious food.and made sure that they had a place to stay
Youth Leader/ Sundiy school Teacher
May 2018-Present . ’
% Organize a curriculum based on bible studies
© Counsel students through good and hard timés
© Community outreach and Volunteer



DacuSign Envélope ID: 560CAF2D-D126-4E72-AF20-5CCIEG4CASF7

Rachael
Komisar

Skills

Non-Profit Work

Work Ekpérience

Contact Info:,

Skills include; team player, fast learner; attention to detail, courteous,
professional demeanor, time management skills, management skills,
computer skills, phone skills/etiquette, etc.

Audubon Society /Volunteer .
Helped with kids camp groups. Most responsibilities requiredcaring for’
animals and cleaning individual displays/environments for each-animal,

Nashua Soup Kitchen/Volunteer

Supported the kitchen staff by aldmg infood prep, cleanlng and
organizing. Helped serve food on the line during serving hours. -

Girls Inc. Manchester/ Volunteer .

Acted as a person who provides support and advice to the younger girls
who.are looking for role models, Helped with homework assignments and
general activities, General cleanup and organization was involved.

YMCA Merrimack/ Volunteer _ .
Worked alongside others in the “Kids Stop” caring for toddlers and older
children in.a drop-off daycare type system. Many activities including
outdoor games, arts and crafts, emotional supportif necessary, and .
homework support. ¢ .

Bedford Falls / Server
August 2015 JUNE 2017, Bedford, NH

Responsibilities were to.make sure that all residents received proper
sustenance. Dietary plans were always followed in-order to ensure the
clients good health. Other duties included but were not limited to; proper
safety and sanitation. techniques, detailed side work before and after
each meal shift and providing friendly and attentive services to clients
and family. -

L

'Bayada Home Health Care / LNA

MAY 2018 - JANUARY 20192, Manchester, NH

Providing home health care for a vast number of clients whom all have
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different levels of required care. Different_tiﬂes included companion,
homemaker and health aide. Providing one-on-one care witha,
compassionate approach.

Worked with veterans with PTSD and several clients with dementia and
other cognitive disabilities.

Educated and assisted with ADLs and personal care, and prompted
socialization.

Worked with clients with mental illness and assisted with coplng skills
and symptom management.

Prompted-and monitored clients taking medications

Home Instead Senior Health Care /LNA
JANUARY 2019 - MARCH 2019, Manchester, NH

Providing home health care for a vast number of clients who all have
different levels of required care. Different titles included companion,
homemaker and health aide. Prowdmg one-on-one care with a
compassionate approach.

Worked with veterans with PTSD and several clients with dementia and
other cognitive disabilities.

Educated and assisted with ADLs and personal care, and prompted
socialization.

Worked with clients with mental illness and assisted with coping skills
and symptom management,

Prompted and monitored clients taking medications.

Harbor Homes/ Internship/ Support Staff
September 2019 - April 2020

Internship and hired position (support staff) included meeting clients
goals and getting them engaged in socjal activities. Ensuring the general
welfare of clients and completing any tasks the staff may ask of me. This
also includes attending training sessions offered to the staff.

Working in a group home setting with nine clients with severe and
persistent mental illness.

Assisted with ADLs, socialization, symptom management, task
performance, and adaptation to'change utlllzmg a cognitive-behavioral
approach.

In addition to the internship duties, the actualhired duties included
administering prescription medications and as needed medications.

Brightstar Care/ LNA
January 2020 - May 2020

Providing home health care for a vast number of clients who all have
different levels of required care. Different titles included companion,
homemaker and health aide. Providing one-on-one care with a
compassionate approach.

Worked with veterans with PTSD and several c]lents with dementia and
other cognitive disabhilities.

Educatedand assisted with ADLs and.personal care, and pr"ompted
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e socialization.

Worked with'clients with mental illness and asmsted with coping skills -
and symptom management.

Prompted and monitored clients taking meditations.

TruGreen/ Lawn Specialist
May 2020 - Novermber 2022

Giving each client special attention for each of their home/ lawn care
needs. Fertilization.and targeted treatments for biting and stinging
insects to ensure client comfort outside of theirhomes.

Elmore Patent Law Group
August 2021 - Current

Per diem office work assistant,
Contracted for office cleaning.

Heaven Sent Home Care/ LNA
September 2021 - February 2022

Providing home health and in facility care for a vast number of clients
who all have different levels of required care. Different titles included
companion, homemaker and health aide. Providing one-on-one care with
a compassionate approach.

Worked with veterans with PTSD and several clients with dementia and
other cognitive disabilities.

Educated and assisted with ADLs and personal care, and prompted
socialization.

Worked with clients with mental iliness and assisted with coping'skills
and symptom management.,

Prompted and monitored clients taking medications.

JOVIE Boston ]
February 2023 - July 30,2023

On call childcare. Putting early childhood education to test while working
with children ranging from infants to ten years old.

Visiting Angels/ Case Worker
July 34, 2023-Current )
Meet with clients and families to accurately complete all admission
paperwork and assure the client and family understand the home care
. plan and their responsibilities.

’ Handle lead calls and conduct telephone and face-to-face interviews for

prospective clients,
* Schedule and facilitate initial and on- -soing client and caregiver meet;ngs

Reviews services, the cost of care, completes client service agreement
and initial paperwork. _
Schedule, conduct'and decument home visits to collect feedback from
clients regarding caregiver performance of duties, and problem solve.as
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Education

required, : -
Develop the plan of care in accordance with the c!lent needs and wishes,
update as warranted,

Conduct supervisory visits in the home and ensure that the services are
being provided in accordance with the care plan.

Resolves complaints and incidents.

Evaluate client and employee satisfaction

Assess caregiver pefformance, participate in caregiverperformance
reviews. .
Maintain positive relations with all clients and referral sources.

On-call respansibilities on evenings and weekends

Bedford High School / Diploma
AUGUST 2013- JUNE 2017, Bedford, NH

Manchester School of Techno[ogy/ Two- -year dlploma
AUGUST 2015- JUNE 2017

LNA received in the second year of the program.

Rivier University / Graduate

SEPTEMBER 2017 - AUGUST 2023, Nashua, NH

Degree: Bachelorof Arts in Human Development
MINQOR(S) - Criminal Justice, Social Work
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Zeynab Osman

o’ L]
I
oS I s i

" Education

Keene State College  Expected Graduation May 6th, 2023 Major | Criminal Justice
Relevant Coursework | Criminology, Foreign Policy, Criminal Law and Procedure

Work Experience
‘Walmart, Stocking TA _ September 2022 - Current

« Assist customers by finding items quickly to boost store satisfaction rates.

« Help customers complete purchases by moving heavy items, collecting payments, and
bagging purchases. ]

Courville (Manchester), Central Supplies/ Réceptionist/ Dietary Aid October 2019 - Current
= Oversee inventory materials monitoring, requisitions, and supply restocking.

* Manage multiple tasks and meet time-sensitive deadlines, while answering a Iarge
volume of incoming calls daily to resolve customer issues and schedule ‘
appointments.

Internship: The Washington Center
Jubilee Housing, Intern - January 31, 2023- April 28, 2023

o Ido one-on-one visits with senior residents of Jubilee Housing, making sure that
seniors have that emotional support that allows them to thrive in the community,
while informing them of future events we have coming up such as Senior
Workshops that are held once a month. '

e Plan and coordinate future events that are highly beneficial for residents as well
as staff, such as cervical’cancer awareness to an iftar dinner for Ramadan.

¢ Networked with Howard University for Law School

Leadership Experience
Black Student Union, Vice-President April 2022 - Current
* Hold weekly meetings, to discuss issues that black students face in a predominately

white institution.

* Ensure a safe space where black kids can come and be themselves without the -
stereotypes and micro-aggression that follow them around campus,
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Youth Organizing Project, Youth Leader September 2016 - August 2019
» Facilitated youths through collaborative efforts with like-minded, creative,
and poised team members.

* Build partnerships with related organizations to develop support and gain
greater attention to important issues.

* Educated young people about strategies for driving discussions and promoting
social changes. )

Professional Skills
Languages | Somali (Native Fluency)
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
KEY PERSONNEL
List those pﬂmarily_ responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement,

Joh descriptions not required for vacant positions,

Contractor Name: America's Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction Networii, Inc.

2

lAllison Joséph

Executive Direclor $0.00 $120,000.00
JoAnn Smith - . Lead Instructor $58,383.20 $65,000:00
Samier Caceres . Numeracy Instructor $49,772.80. $58,000.00
Rachael Komisar ) Humanities instructor . $48,884.00 $55,000.00

Zeynab Osman Resource insfructor $44,440.00 $50,000.00

3
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 3 :
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
BIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES
Lot A Shibiinette 129 PLEASANY STREET, CONCORD, NH.O3301.3887 -

Commisdoner o 6032714451 1-BUE-832-3345 Bxt, 4451
Cos Faxs 683-271-4729  ¥DD Access: 1-800-733-2964  www.dhbs.ah.gov

Joseph-£; Hihsam, Jr,
Dircctor

November 9, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Chrasiopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councit

State House

Concord, New Hampsh;re 0330‘2

o : REQUESTED ACTION

Authonze the Department of Hea%th and Human Services, Dmsaanfor Chi!dren Youth and
,Families, to award a Sole Source contract with America’s Youth Teenage Unsmployment .
Reduction Network, Inc, (VCH#166581), Manchester, NH, in the amount of $400,000 for
- competency and credit earning tutoring to Sununu Youth Services Certer (SYSC), with the option
to-renew for up to five (B) additional years, effective upon Governer and Council approval or on

December 1, 2022, whichever is latér, through Jine 30, 2024, 100% General Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023 and are anticipaled
to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the avallability and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budgsat, with the authority to-adjust budget line items within the price
limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified. '

05-95-42-421510-66430000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AN%) HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF HHS: SUNUNU YOUTH SERVICES CENTER;8YSC HBZ 91:327

State ' Class}

Class Title Job Number I' Total Amount:

Fiscal Year Account }
074500589 ~ Grants for Pub Asst TBD - $150,000
2023 ’ s

: &Rell L
. | 074-8008689 | Grants for Pub-Asst: TBD $250,000

2024 : sjor el .

&Reli . ;
‘ Total ] $400,000 |
EXPLANATION

Thus request is Sole Source because.the Contracior is the only known vendor ab!e to
provide the necessary sevices within the required tmeframe due to exigent educational staffing
rieeds at SYSC, The vendor is also uniquely qlalified gwen thelr level of expertise In providing
services to support youth similar-to the papuia’uon who will be served at SYSC. The Contractor
also provides a continuum of care that is. critical for yeuth served by the Department which
includes continuing services upon release from SYSC, re-integrating youth in their homa
communifies.

Al

. The Depariment of Fealth wid Humaon Servieps” Mission B 1o Joln cominunitios and fomitisy
. n N . in providing opportunities foreltizers o poekicve health and 4’::@0;;;7:7&0»@:
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His Exceliency, Goveinor Chadstoptier T, Sununy
and the Honorable Cdunct :
Page 2 of 2 : -

The purpose of this request is to provide comprehensive, -engaging and ir‘z;ﬁviziua!ized
secondary educational service, post-secondary planning, career exploration, and employment
training services fo youth at SYSC in order to aid in development of skills, goals and self-
confidence. '

Apprw&ima_tety 186 individuals will be :served during State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024,

* The Contractor wilt work coliaboratively with the Department staff to provide youth a-
combination of direct instruction and tutoring for developing competency‘and credit aming such
as academic instruction, Hi SET or college preparation and caresr exploration.  Additionally the
Contractor will collaborate with local partners such as high schodls employers and colleges to
provide a holistic approach to serving youth based on individual needs, as well as support wrap-
around community-based supports to youth returning ‘home from SYSC through the in-school
youth programs through the New Hampshire (NH) school systems.

The Department will monitor seivices using the following ,p‘arforma‘nce measures:
e 90% of youth receiving educational Services will- earn educational credit.

o 100% of IEP/504 plans for youth wil ri;efsupport_e;q by the contractor and adhere to
IEPs/504s, including attendance to IEP/S04 Mesatings and the development of
IEP/504 revisions.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions Section 1.2.,
of the attached agreement, the parfies have the option to' extend the agreament for up five
(5) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available “funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Gouncil approval. ‘

Should the Governor and Counclt not authorize this requast, youth at SYSC will not receive
educationatl instruction and credits, career and workiorce developmert support, Additionally
youth will not receive the support and or educational niéeds outfined in their Individual Education
Plan {IEP) resuiting in youth facking in the educational and career supported needed to transition
successfully back into their community and school systems. '

Area served: Statewide .
Respectiully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette
GCommissioner

" for:
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S : . FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)
Subject: Competancy azszﬁ_gresiiz,sa.;nmg Tutotidg {§5-2024-DOYF-12.COMPE-01) '

Notice! This agreement aﬂd alt of it anauhme:ms shall become pnh!:c upon submissian to Governdy and
Excentive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprissdry ‘must
b clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract,

’ AGREEMENT
The State of‘ "ww Haripshire and the Contraétor hereby mutoally agree as fallows:
i GENERAL PROYISIONS !
1. IDENTIFICATION, _
1.1 State Ageney Name o 1.2 Swate Agency Address

New Hampshire b’cpan:'ﬁg:;t of Health and Human Services | 129 Pleasant Street
. - |«Qoncord, NH 03301-3837

13 Qﬁntr{lcgi:l)r Nmﬁe : T4 éoxxtra&ci;sx*Addre&x
America’s Youth Teendge Unemployment 340 Granite Street, Suite 1
Reduction Network, Inc. I Manchaster, NH, 03102
1.5 Cént}aciui‘i’honé— . L6 Accoudt Number K Completion Date i ' : 18 Pfif:eLiﬁai&;ibn
Mumber ) . . . '

: . 05-95-42-421510- § 0430/2024 : £400,000
{5033 321-3416 54430000 ‘
1.9 Contracting Officer for State- Agency - 1 1.10 State Agéney Telephone Number -
Robert W, Moore, Di'mcif.;rl ' : {6033 2719631
1,11 Contractor Signature - ‘ .12 Name and Title of Contractor ‘-szf.,immr}f

Atlison mseph

1972022 Executive Director

1,14 Name and Title of State Agency Sizuatory
Decispradby: Joseph E. Ribsam, Jr,

| Joseph E. Ribsam Jr. ﬁ?f’&/mzz Director
1 LIE Appmwﬂ"hy%e ST Department.of Adm;mstmmn, Division of Personnel (if applicoble}

By: ‘ I)%rectar,.{)z:‘:
{ 136 Approval by the. Atorcy General (Fonm, h;ibstanw angd Execution) df° am!;mbh}
oeubipned W 2
HE,?;)% o Do ” Gn: 11/9/2022
; CHAnEBIBAL AN RN, .
117 Approval by the, Gwmmr and E}‘eeume Council fif applicabli)
G&C Tem number: : ' G&CMeatitig Date
5
(2]
Page iofd : M

Costractor Initials™
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2. SERVICES TO.BE PERFORMED, "The State of New
Hampshire, avting through he agency identified in block 1.1
("State™}, engages contracier idmtzﬁed in Block 13

(*Comiractor™) {o perform, and the (‘ommmr shall perform, the

work or safe of goods, or both, ;dent:ﬁed and more partisularky
described in the attached EXHIBIT B whicli is mcgrparateé
hercin by reference ("Services”}.

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement 1o thie
contrary, and subjeet o the approval of the' Governer and
Executive Council of the Stare.of New Hampshire, if sgplicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties bereunder, shali
becorie effvctive on the date the Ciovernor and Excemtive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 117,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreemen
shall ‘become effective on the éme the Agreement is signed by
theState Agmcy as $hown i block 1.13 {“Effective Dam”)

3.2 1f the Comtractor commencds the Servides prior to the

Effective Date, all Serviees performed: by the Contzctor privr o

the Effective Date shall be performied at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the. State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any. oblzgatmn W opry the
Contractor for auy costs ineurred or ‘Servicgs performed.
Contractor must compleie al Stmccs by the Completion Date
speeified in block 1.7, :

4. CONDITIONAL '\'AT[E!{F OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agresment to the
contrary, ati abhgatwns of tkc ‘itaie hemundar :nciudmg,
contingent-upon Ehe availability.and wn!mued appmpraatmn of
Sunds affticted by any state or federal Igislative or exceutive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of fumi:mgp for this Agreement and.

" the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in-

part. In no event shall the State be lable for any payments
hereunder In excess of such available appropriated funds. Inth
event of a reduction or wrmingtion of appropriaid funds, the
State shall Bave the right (© withhold payient until such funds
become avaitable, ifover, and shall have the right 18 reduce or
térininate the Services, undér g Agredimeit immedistely upon
giving the Corifraclor notice of such redudtion of !a,mzmatmn
The State shall not be required 1o transfer funds from any other
account or soutce to. the Account identified in block 1.6 the
evend funds in t}mt Accouni: e reduced oF wnavai lable.

&, CO‘\’FR&C’T PRICEWPRICE LIMi’I’A’f;O\f
PAYMENT. :

5.1 The.contrnet price, iethod of paymeni, and terns of payirent
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference,

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract pricg:shall be the

only and the complate reimbursement o the Contractor for all
eRpenses, of whatever natute incurred” &)y the C‘ommasr in tie
pedformance hereof, and shall Be the only and The complets

Page 2 of 4 1Ly

compensntion 1o the Contractor for the Services, The State shall
have no fiability to the Contracior other than the contract price,
5.3 The Staterreserves the right 1o offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contrictor under this Agreement thasc
lighidated amounis required or permitted by NH. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-¢ or-any othier provision of law.

5.4 Nowithstanding any provision in this Agrecment o the

contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected Circumstances, in 1o

evient shall the total of all paymen(s authorized, or actualiy sinde

hereunder, éxceed the Price Limitation set 5ith in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE, BY C{)E.\’TRAC}" OR WITHLAWS
AND REGULATIONS EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the perforimanes of the Services, the
Contctor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,

. regulations, and orders of federal, state, ‘coity o muuwlpat
" authorities which Impose any obh‘ralwn of duty upon “thé

Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal

‘smployinent opportunity Taws. In addition; if this Agresment is

funded in any part by manies of the United States, lhe Contragtor
shall coniply witlyall federal executive orders, rulés, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regolations and guidelines as the

S1ate or the United States issue to Implement these regulaiions,

The-Contractor shall also c@mply with al applicable inteflestual
property Jaws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contrattor shall not
diseriminate against enployses or applidants Tor ainploymént
bechuse of rade, volor, religion, ¢reed, age, séx, handicap, sexial

-ovientation, or nativnal origin and will ke affinmative actidn o

prevent such discrimination.

6.3, The Centractor agrees to pemif the $tate or Uslied States
aceess toany of the Contrattor's books, records and acoounts for
thepurpose of ascertaining compliance with albrules, regulations

“and ordérs, and the covenants, terms dnd conditions of thig

Agrecment.

7. [’I*,RS(}’\?\LL .

7.1 ‘The Contracior shatfat its own eXpense pmwd& alb pmxmm'l
necessary lo purformithe Services, The Conlrictor warrants that
all persenncl engaged in the Services shall be qualified o
perform the. Services, and shall be properly Ticensed and
otfierwise authorized to do 3o wndey all ﬁppimzbig laws.

7.2 Lhtless ptherwise authorized in wrlzmg during the term of
this Agreement, and for g peciord of six (63 mouths after the
C ﬁmpiéteen Date inblock 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and

-sholl pot permit any siibsonteactor or other person, firh of

corporation with whiit it is” éngiaged 'in ‘o combified seffort o
perfonm the Scrviees to hire, any person whio is a State emplayds
or official, who is materially involved in the procurcmient;
administration. of perfomuuace of this. Agreement.” This
provision shall survive lermination of this Agreement,

7.3 The Contracting Officer Wcmﬁeﬁ in iﬁoa!\ 1.9, or his or ber
sugeessor, shail be the State’s repm&enmim Inthe event of any
dxspute concerning the inferpretation of this Agreen:em the
Condrailing Officer's decision shall ba fifal for the State.

123
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. .
8.1 Any pune or more of the faiiawmg atts oromissions of the

Contractor shall constitnie an event of default heroundar {“Eyvent ~

of Default™y;

3.1.1 falure w0 perform the Services satisfactorfly- or on
schedule;

8.1.2 Taiture-to submit any report requived hereunder; andfor

$.1.3 failure to perform any other covenait, ferin or c&nd:tmn of

this Agreement.

5.2 Upprithe occurrence of any Event of Default, the Stmte may-

take auy ong, of more, or afl, of the following sctions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor & writlen notice speeifying the Bvent of

Drefault and requiring it to-be remedied within, in the absense of
agreater o lesser speeification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and i the Eventof Default is not timely ewred,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of lermination:
-§.2.2 give the Contractor a-tritten fiotice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments, to be made under 1his

Agreerisenl and ordering that the portion of the contract privg

which worild oiherwise acerue to the Contractor during the.
- period from the date of such notice entit such time as the imi_f:
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Defoult
shall never be paid-1o the Contragior;

§.2.3 give the Contractor a wrifien notice specifying the Event of
Defunll and set off against.any ather obligations the State niay
oiwe'to the Contractor any damagcs theStaté wf’fem by réadorof
ahy Eventof Defunlt; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor 4 written inotice spedifhig the Event 6f”

Trefault, {reat the Agreement as breached, ferminate the
Agrecinent and pnmue any of its refnedics at [aw or in equity, o
both.

8.3, No failure by the State 1o eisforce any pmvisisﬂs hereofafler

any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to thdl Event of Default, or any subsequent Iivent of
Default, No express failure to enforce any Bvent of Default shall
be'deemed & waiver of the right of the Stine to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereos upon any further or other Event of
Drefaudt on tie part of the Contracior,

STERMINATION, : :

9.1 Notwithstanding. parageaph 8, the Siate mmy, 2t its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for by reason, -ty wholesr
tn part, by thiy. {’50} days wrilten notice to the Contractos that

{he State is.exereising its option'te terminate the Agreement,

9.2 Intheevent of an carly lermination of this Agreement for
any reason ofher than the completion of the Services, thé
Contractor shall, a1 the Stite’s discrétion, deliver to the
Contracling Oﬁwar' not laterthan fiftei (15) days after the date
of tenmination, n reporn: (*Tennination Report™y” de%cnbm,g, in
detail ali Services performed, aid the contract prive camed, 1
g Including the date of termination. The form, subp:ci matier,.

content, and number of copics of the Teryination Reporl shall .

be identical to zimse of any Final Repori deseribed in the attached

EXHIBITB. In .1d<§mon, at the State's discretion, thi Contractor’

shall, within 15 days of fiotice of early: lermmaim develop and

submit 1o the State n Tranaition P%:m for services under the
Agreement,

18, DBAT: MACCES&;’(ZONF% DENTIALITY/
PRESERVATIGN. ]
1T Asused in this Agreement, e word “data” shitl mean all

{aformuation and things devéloped or obtained during the

performince of, or acquired or develuped by réison of, this
Agreément, htluding, but not Hmited to, all studies, reports;

. files, formulae, sarveys, maps, chorts, sound recordings, video

recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, compuler progrants, eﬁmptsit.r printouts, notes,
leiters, mempranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfished.

"10.2:Al dataand any property which has been received from

the State or purchased with funds provided for:thit purpose
uider this Agreement; shall be the property 6f the State, and

shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agrécment for any reason,

10.3 Confidentiality of daty shall be governed by N.H, RSA
chapter91~A or other existing lnw, Disclosure of data requires
prior written appioval of the State,

HsCONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. inthe
performance of this Agfeement the Comtractor is in all respeots
an indépendenl coltradtor, and s neither an agént nor an
cmployee of the Stute.  Neither the Contengtor nor iy ‘of its
officars, emp!ﬁyeea, agents or members shall have auﬁmmy to
bind the $tate or feceive any benefits, workers’ compensation of
othér emoluments provided by .the State 1o its employees.

12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
{2.1.The Contractor shall not.assign, or otherwise transfer any

interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which

shall be provided to the State of Jeast fificen (ES} duys prior to

the assignment, and'a written consent of the State, For puiposes

of ihis ;ﬁmgmp . & Change-of Contral shall constitute”
assignment. “Changé  of Cuntiol” means (1) merger,
wﬂsoi:é'm:)n, or a frinsaction or Series ofrelated wansations in |
which a third party, together with its affi limes, beoomes the.
dirdet or indireet owner ol fifty percent {50%) or more of e
wimg shares or stmilar equity interesis, or combined voting
powsy of the Contractor, or {h) the sate of al or substazahai tvall
of the assets.of the Contractor,

12.2 None of the Services shell be suhcqntréétad by the
Conjractor withoit priorwritlen notice and consent of the State:
The State is.entitled 1o capies 'iif'ali.salbcmaﬁ'ai:-%s,_anai' assignment

'ﬁgreerns,ms and shall not be bound by any provisions contaiied

in n Subdontréct ot an adsighment agreement o which it is not
party,

13.. I?xi)iui‘w’l ’\ii” iCATlGN Unless othurwise ctcmplcé by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harndess the Stute, ifs
officers nnd dmployees, fiom and agmmsi 'my and alf claims,

tiabilities snd eosts for any perdonat injury or pmpt.rt)' dapiagues,

patent tr copyright infrinnément, or other claims asserted dgainsi
the Stale; its afficers or employees, which erise cut of{or which

may bi-claimed o drite ot of} the ach or om[sm‘i‘f‘ of the

’Paga Jof4
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‘Ca:&tmcior, or subcomtractors, including bit not limited to the
nepligence, Teckless or intentiond! conduct. The State shall'not.
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contsactor arising under
“this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the. fon:ga ing, nothifg herdin
contained shall be deemed o constitute a witivér of the sovereign
‘Trimmnity 5 the State; which imwirehity is hereby reserved tothe
Stale. This' CoVendnt in paragraph 13 shall sarvive thee
termination of this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE,

14.1, The C()mrauur shall, at its. sole nxpensc obiain and
continuously maintain o foree,  and  shail mgum any
rsubcontrastor or assignee to obtain and matntain in foree, :i:e
fotfowing insurancé:

14.1.1 commercial gendral linbility insirarice against all claims
of badily injory, deatl or property damage. i amounts of not

‘fess than $1.000,000 per cterrence and $2,000,000 aggregate

ot excess; and

14.12 spectal canse of Joss coverage form covering all property
subjectto subparagraph 10,2 herein, in-an amount not less than
-80% of the whole replacement yalye of the property. -

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14,1 herein shall be
Ceon peiicy forms and endorsements approved for use n the Sate
of New: Hampshim by the N.H, Depariment of Insurance, and -
fssued by iisurérs Heensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14,3 "The Contragtor shall furnish to. the Contragting Officer
identifisd in block L9, or bis orhér sugeessor, a certificata(s) of
insuranoe for all insurance required under this Agieement.
Contractor shalfalso furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9.:0r his or her suceessor, cestificate(s). of insurance
for all rencwal(s) of insurance reguired under’this Agreement no
iater ihan ten {10} days prior to the exp:rauun date of eich
insnrande pa!u,y The certificate(s) of insurince and any

renewals thereof shall be attac wd aml are incorporated heréin by.

seference,

15, WORKERS' COMPENSATION,

: 15.1 By Signing thiy agreement; the Contractor agrees, certjfies
and warrimts that the Comtracter isin cemplmncc with or cvempl
from, the requirements of N JRSA chapter 281-A (“Workers'
lf‘mn;mwm’iuﬁ “h
152 To the extent the Conlractor s gub,;ect to the reqmremcms
of NUH. RSA. chapter 281-A, Contractor: shall maintain, and
requlr’:: any’ subcentractér or assegnea to seeure &ad tainindn,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connettion with
activities whiththe person proposes to undertake pursant to this
Agreginent, Thé Contractorshall fiunish theContracting Officer
identified i block 1.9, or his oy her sucecssor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in NH. RSA chapter
281-A and any appl licabie repewal(s) mcreof‘ which shall be
mimi:e{i and are incorporated herein by reforcice.  The State
shall not bo rcspmmh!a for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums ‘or.for any other claiin or-benefit fof

- Contracter, Of any - subcontractor or vinpliyee of Contrattor,
axliieh nughs asise under appllmb!e Btate of New Hampshira
Workers" Compf;mm:er; laws i “voppeetion with  the
performanse of the Services under this Ag,m,mcm

Page 4 o 4 1 a)

16. NOTICE, Any notice by o patly heretd 1o the other parly
shali be deemed to have beenh duly delivered or given 4t tic time
of mailing by certified mail, posiage prepaid, in o United States
Post Office addréssed 1o the parties at the addresses given in

blocks 1.2 snd’1.4, herein, ' .

7. AMENDMENT: This Agreonient may be amended, waived
or disgbarged only by 2o instument.dn writing signed by the
pacties hereto and only et approval of such amendment,
waiver of discharge by the Govemor and Exdeutive Couneil of
the State of Mew Hanmpshire viless no suth approval is required

umier‘t!‘uéf'f;iréumstariws‘purgumn‘rb‘Staia-igw; rule o'r policy.

18, CHOICE OF LAW AND F{)R{}M This Agreament shal
be govemed, interpreted aud construed in acvordance with the
{aws of the State of New Hamps!urc angl s bmdmg upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respectivé successors
andasdigns. The wording used inthis Agreemenit is the wording

¢hosen by the partics to express thelr nuttual intent, and no rule

of construction shall be applied against.or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreément shall be brought and
mainiained in New Hampshise Superor Court witich shall bave
exclisive Jurisdiction therett .

19‘ CONFLICTING ’!"FilM‘r In the event of a conllict
between the terms eaf this P-37 form (as. modified in EXHIBIT
A} anttior ;macixma;ms and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 {as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall contral.

20, THIRD: PARTIES, The purtics lieteto do not inteid to
benefit any’ third parties ‘nd- this’ Agreement shall not be
consiried 1o confer’ zmy such benefit,

21 HEADINGS, The headings throughow the Ayefcmem are,
for referenice purposes only, and the words contained thercin
shall in ng way be held to ex;xmm, mmisﬁy; nm;}isf‘y or #idin the
interprétation, consimcmn or meaning of the provisions of this
Agrecnont.

2. SPRCIAL PROVISIONS., Additional or imodifving
provisions set forthein the altiched EXTIBIT A are mcorpoxated
lerehy by refetence,

23, SEVERABIL!TY, Inthe event any of the provisions o this

Agreement are held by.a cowrt of competent }u:isdicﬁba té be

conﬁrary 10 @ity state or Fecieral I, the remaining provisions of
this Agicement will renialn fu full-foree and-effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREBRMENT, This Agiﬁ%chif:_ﬂ!, which mdy be

executed 10 .6 number of cdunterparis,etch of Wwhich shall be .
deemid dd odigingl, ‘ooHstitites the tntire -agreement qnd
wnderstanding between e spurfies, and supersedes: all prior
agréements and unde si’mdmg}: with re&pea& tothe subject malter
hereof.

3
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EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Aqreemeni Provisions

1. Revisions fo Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date!Compietron of Services, is
amended as follows:

31. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemient to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hersunder, shall become effective upon

* Governor and Executive Council approval or on December 1, 2022,
whichever is later.

Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Semces is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The partles may extend the Agreement for up five (5) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery- of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and -approval of the
Governor and Executive Council, '

Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as-follows: :

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance ‘with those conditions. The Contractor -shall have wiitten
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if appliéable, a Business Associate Agreement in dccordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on anongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance. '

I
$6-2023-DCYF-12-COMPE-D] : A1.2 Contractor inltials ‘ !% ? !

Ameriza’s Youth Teenage Unempfoyment Reductian
Metwork, Inc.
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CEXHIBITB

‘Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

The Contractor must provide Competenty and Gredit Earning Tutoring in this

1.1,

_ agreement to youth at Sununu Youth Services Center (SYSEC),

1.2.  The Contractor must ensure services are avallable at SYSC in Manchester,
New Hampsh:r& _

1.3. Forthe purposes of this Agreement, all refererices to days must mean busmess

: days, excluding state and federal holidays. _
1.4, For the purposes of this Agreement, all referances to businéss hours must
. mean Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.

1.5. The Contractor must collaborate with - the Department to provide
comprehensive; engaging and individualized secondary educational services,
postmseaondary pianﬁmg, career exploration, and employmenttraining toyduth
in order'to ‘aid in the development of skills, goals and self-confiderice.

1.8. The Contractor must provide administrative support and ccifaberatton with
sending school districts regularly.

1.7. . The Contracter must work collaboratively with the Department staff to provide

) a minimum of four (4) to five (8) educators, during normal school hours, five
' days a week, to provide and support educational/ivocational services to up to
sixteen {(16) youth at SYSC.

1,-& “The Contractor must pmvnde all necessary academic requ%remenis mcludmg
but riot fimited to:

18.1. English
1.8.2.  History B
18.3.  Math ’

- 1.84.  .Science (
1:85.  Health a8
18.6. A
1.8.7.  Physical Education .

1.9. The Contractar must provide -all materials, curriculum and lesson planning
required foreducational programming.

1.40. The Coniractor must defermine the neeéds of each youth by .conducting
absessment utilizing, guidance and counseling to ldentafy a holistic appmach to

) serving'the youth, : . s
SE82022HCYF42-COMPEDS ' B2 ‘ ) Contrattor mek;[ ﬁ'j
Aivefiea’s Youth T&eaag»’*i,!ﬁcmplownem Reduction _ ’ ©11/9¢7 2022
NEwork, e, Page 1 of 11 Urle
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EXHIBITB

111,

112,

1.13.

1.14.

1.15.

The Contractor must wo'rk collaboratively with Depariment staff to provide
youth “a combination of diréct instruction and tutoring for developing
competency and credit earning, including bui not limited to:

1,11.1. . Academic Instruction

1.11.2.  HiSET or Céllége Preparation -
1.11.8.  Career Exploration

1.114.  Paid and Unpaid Internship

1115, Occupational Training B
1.11.6. Leadership skill development

1417, - Finansiai.Capability"{’mining”

1.11.8.  Job Placement Assistance -

. 1119 Follow up Support

1.11.10. Supportive Services
141.11. Barier Removal
The Confractor must ensure that each classroom s equipped with a

Department provided computer for each student and that has access to the
internet as needed to complete coursework. -

The Contractor must coliaborate with local partners to provide a holistic -
approach to serving youth based on mdwzdual needs. Partners include but are
not limited to:

1.13.1. High schools

1.13.2. Employers

1.13.3. Colleges

1.13.4. Social Service agenciss

The Contractor must provide wrap-around community-based si,sppf}rts {o yeutﬁ
returning home froin SYSC thicugh the In-school youth programs thirough the
New Hampshire (N} school systems, including but not limited to:

1.14.1, ManchesterCentral, West and Meiriorial

1.14.2. Nashua Nosth and-South

1.14.3, Franiin

1.14.4. Spaulding

The Contractor must provide wrap-around cammumty based suppm‘iﬁ Fgouth -

- BE-2023-DCYF-12-CONPE-01 820 Confractér inifals ﬁj

Amarica's Youth Teenage Uﬁamaieyment Reiduction 11_/ 9/2('}22
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EXHIBITB

116,

1.47.

1.18.
1.19.

1.20,

1.21.

1.22.

$$~é$23wDCYFw@2~COMPE»01 B-2.0 Contragtor (niinls

returning” home from SYSC thmugh the 0u2—o€~schacai youth pmgrams-
throughout NH, including but not limited to: :

1.15.1. Greater Manchester
1.15.2. Greater Nashua | : .
1.15.3. Lakes Region

1. 154 Seacpast . *

Thé Contractor must participate in méetings with the Department on a weekly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Depariment. .

The Contractor may participate in on-site reviews conducted by the Department
on a quarterly basis, or as-otherwise requested by the Depariment.

The Confractor must ensure staff participate in annual training on topics

'inc%uding but not fimited to Prison Rape Elimination Action (PREA), as provided

by the Department.

The Contractor must utilize the Canvas Stadent Manag@ment Sgﬂware mr}ng_

with the integrated Discovery tool for lesson plan supplementation managed by
the Department.of Education 1o support all classroom lesson plans, grading,
and other student management components,

The Contractor must attend all required Security and Privacy Trainings as
determined by the Deparimeni

Reporling

1.21.1. The Contractor must submit monthly reports to ensure adsquate
youth education and programming which Enciude but are not limited
to:

1.21.1.1. Prcémss- Reports, |
1.21.1.2. Grading Reports.

1.2_’§".2 The Conlractor may be required to provicié other key data and metrics
to the Department in & format specified by the Depardment.

Performance Measures

1,22.1. The Deépatiment will mohitor Contractor performariceé by momtormg
program outcomas includi ing bui not Itmsted to:

1.22.1.1. 90% of youth mcewtng etﬁazcatsonai senvices will earn
educational credit.

1.224.2. 100% of the youth’s 1EP/504 plans will be supported by the
. ‘contractor and adhere to 1EPs/804s, including allendance

)

Ameriea’s Youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction 117972022

Métwork, e,
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io IEP/504* Meetings and the- deveiopm&nf of IEP/504
 revisions,

1.1, Background Checks j

1.1.1. The Contractor must conduct criminal background checks, at'ils own

: - -expense, and not wilize any-End Users, to fulfill the obligations of the
Contract who have been .convicted of any crime, of dishonesty,
mciudmg but not limited to criminal fraud, or otherwise convicted of
any felony or misdemeanor offense for wh;ch incarceration-for up.to
1 year is an authorized penalty. The Confracior agrees it will initiafe'a
criminal background check re- investigation of all~employess,
volunteers, intems, and subcontractors assigned to this Contract
-every five (6) years. The five (8} year period will be based on the dale
of the last Criminal Background Check cohiducted by thé Contractor,

1.1.2. The Conlractor must promote and maintain an awaren@ss of the
importance: of securing the Department's information among the
Contractor's End Users. Contractors End Users shall not be
permitted to handle, access, view, store or discuss Confidential Data -

- until an attestation is received by the Contractor that.all Confractor
End Users associated with fulfilling the ohhgatrons of this Contract
‘are, based on criteria provided herein are, efigible to participate in
work associated with this Contract.

4.2.  Privacy Impact Assessment

X - 1.21. Upon request the Contractor must allow and -assist the Department
in conducting a Privacy lmpact. Assessment (PIA) of its
system{s)/application(s)wveb portai(s)!wabs:te(s) or Department
system(s)/application(s)web portai(s}vebsite(s) hosted by the
Conlractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (PIl} is collected,
\ised, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor
must provide the Department access lo applicable systems and
documentation: sufficient to allow the Depariment fo assess, at
aminimum, fhe following: '

12,1 A, How Pl is gathered and stored;

1.2.1.2. Whao will have access to Pi;

12213, How Pli will be used in the system;

T 1.2.1.4. How individual consent will be achreved and revolked;
and ‘
' 1,215, Privacy practices. [ gj'

§5:2023D0YF-12-COMPE41 820 © Gonirastor ot | Y
Arferica's Youth Teahage Unémiplaymént Redustion ' 11{' 92022 7
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EXAHIBITEB

1.2.2.  The Department may conduct follow-up PlAs in the event there are
either significan process changes or new technologies impacting the
collection, processing or storage of Pil.

1.3. Depariment Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

1.24. if Contractor End Users are authorized by the Depaitment’s
Information Security Office to use a Department issued device (e.9.
computer, tablet, mobile telephone) or access the Department
nefwork in the fulfilment of this Agreement, the selected Vendormust:

1.3.1.1.  Sign and abide by applicable Department and New
Hampshire Depariment of Information Technology (NH
DolT) use agreements, policles, standards, procedures |
and guidelines, and complete app ficable trainings as
required;

- ) 1.3.4.2. - Use the information that they have permission {o access
: solely for conducting official Department business and
agree that all other use or access is strictly forbidden
including, but not limited, to personal or other private and
non-Department use, and that at no time -shall they
access or attempt to access information without haumg
the express authority of the Department to do.so;

1.3.1.3.  Notaccess or attempt to access information in.a manner
inconsislent with the approved -policies, procedures,
andfor agreement relating to system entry/access;

1.3.1.4,  Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modily, reverse
engineer, rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or
being evaluated by the Department, and atalltimes must
use utrnost care 10 protect and keep such software strictly
conficential in accordence with the license or. any other
agreement execuled by the Department;

1315, Only use equipment,  soltware, or ‘sa.,;bscrlpﬁan(sg
‘ authorizerdd by the Depariment's Information Security
Office or designes;

1.3.1.6.  Not install non-standard software on any Depariment
equipment unless authorized by the Department's
Information Security Office or designee;

1.8.1.7.  Agree thal email and other electrenic communication
messages created, sent, and recéived on & Department-
issued emiail system are the property of the-Depattment

552023 DOYF1Z-COMPE-I B3-2.0 Cgrﬁ;m or Inftinis j
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of New Hampshire and to be used for business purposes.
only. Email is defined as “internal email systems”™ or
*‘Department-funded emaii systems.”

1.3.1:8.  Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH
DolT policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

1.8.1.8. . Agree when utilizing the Department’s email system:

1.311.9.1. To only use a Department ernail. .address
assigned to them with a ‘@
affiliate. DHHE.NH.Gov"

- 1.34.8.2. :Include in the -signature lines information
“ identifying the End User as a non- Department
workforce member; and

. o 1.3.1.8.3. Ensure the following confidéntiality notice is
: - embedded underneath the signature fine:

| : JCONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: “This message may
gontain information thatis privileged and confidential
.and is intended only forthe use of the mdwiduai(s}
—towhomitis addressed, If you receive thismiessage
in error, please notify the sender immediately and
delete this electronic message and any attachiments
“from your system. .Thank you for your cooperation.”

1.3.1,10.  Contractor End Users with a Department issued emall,
‘80Caess or potentaal accessto Confidential Data, and/ora
-workspace in a Department building/facility, must:

1.3.1.11.  Complete the Department's Annual Inforrmation Security
& Compliance Awareness Training prior to accessing,
viewing, handling, hearing, or transmzttmg Department

.. Data or Confidential Data.

1.3.4:12.  Sign the Bepaﬂments Business Use and Coﬂfadontia!ity

’ Agreement and Asset Use Agreement, and the NH DolT

Department wide Computer Use Agreement upon

\ execution of the Coéntract ‘and annually throughom the
Contract tem,

1.3.1.13.  Agree End User's will only access the Departrent’
’ Jinfrapet to vVview the Department's Pdlicies. and
Procedures and Information Secuiity webpages.

1:3.1 14 Agres, ifany End User js found to be in violation ofany of

R the abové- Department terms and conditions}] tigﬁ the
S80I DCYFA2.C0MPE.D1 Be . . Contradlor ntials

America’s Youth Teenage Ungmp! aymen% Relugtion ' , 11}9%2022
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EXHIBIT B

Contract, said End User may face reémoval from the
Contract, and/or criminal and/or civil prosecution, if the
act constitutes a violation of law.

1.3.1.15.  Agrees to notify the Departmént a minimum of three
businéss days prior to any upcoming transfers or
terminations, of End Users who. passess Department
credentials and/or badges or who have system privileges.”
If End Users who possess Department credentials and/or
badgas of who have system privileges resign or are
dismissed without advance notice, the Contractor agrees
to notify the Deépartment's Information Security Ofﬂce or .
. tﬁes:gnee immediately. )

1.3.2. Workspace Reqmremen%

1.3.2.1.  If applicable, the Department will work with Contractor to
- determine  requirements  for | providing necessary
workspace and State equipment for its End Users,

1.4. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services
1.4.1. General Re‘iquimmems

1441 if applicable, upon términation or exmraiwn of the
) Contract the Paities agree to cooperale in good faith to
effectuate a smooth secure transition of the Services from
the Contractor to the Deparimént and, if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Depariment to assume the
Services previously performed by the Contractar for this
~section the new Contractor shall be known as
“Recipient’).  Ninety (20) days prior to the end-of the:
contract or unless otherwise spacified by the Department,
the Contractor must begin woiking with the Deparfment

and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data |
Transition Plan (DTP). The Depaiiment shall provide the

DTP template to the Contractor.

1.4.1.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the
: R@Cfpzem n conhection with the transition. from the
perfcrmance of-Services by the Contractor and its End
Users to the performance of such Services. This may’
include assistance with the secure transfer of records
(electroriic and hard «copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and hard copy), the fransition of -any such
Service” from the hardware, software, netw_ffkﬂﬁ%and

88-49023-DCYR12-COMPE.O1 B2.0 . Conteactor Irifials M
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telecommunications -equipment and  intemnet-related
l information  technology  infrastriiicture  (“Internal, T
- Systems”) of Contragtor torthe Internal{T Systems of the
Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any
third-party consultants engaged- by Recipient in
connection with the Transition Services.

1.4:.1.3. Iif a system, database, hardware, software, and/lor
software licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to
manage, track, andior store Department Data in
relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried:
.and returned fo the Depaitmenit, along with-the unventory
document, once transition ‘of Depanment Data is
complete, -

1.4.14.  The inlemal p!annmg of the Tr&nsst:on Services by the
Contractor .and its End Users shall be provided to the
Department and if applicable the Recipient in.a timely
manner. Any such Transition Services shall be deemed
to be Services for purposes of this Contract,

1.4.1.5. « Should the dadta Transition extend beyond the -end of the
Contract, the Contractor agrees that the Conlract
Information Security Requirements, and if applicable, the
Department's Business Assoclate Agreement terms-and
conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is
accepted as complete by the Department,

"1.4.16. In the event where the Contactor has comingled
Department Data and the destruction or Transition of said
data is not feasible, the Depaitment and Contractor will
jointly evaluate regutatory and pmfessmnai standards for
retention requirements prior to- destiuction, refer to the
. terms and conditions of Exhibil K DHHS Information
Security Reguiremants,

1.4.2. Compiehon of Tranmt;on Services

1.4.21. - Each service or Transition phase shali bé deemed
© completed {and the Transition process finalized) at.the
end of 15 business days after the product, fesulting from
~ the Service,.is delivered to the Department and/or the
- Recipient.in ‘accordance with the mutually agreed upon
Transition plan, unless within said 15 business- day ferm
the Contractor notifles e Depariment of an. jssue

I requiring additional time to complete said pradu(% )

SS -2023-DCYF-12.COMPE-O4. B2.0 . Canteattor Inflial
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1.4.2.2.  Once all parties agree the data’has been migrated the
"~ ' Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data’ per the
terms and conditions of Exhibit K: DHHS Infermatron

Security Requirements,

1.4.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.4:3.1:  In the event the Department is not satisfied wsth the
results of the Transition Service, the Department shall
notify the Contractor, by email, stating the reason for the
lack of satisfaction within 15 business days of the final
product or at any time during the data Transition process. .
The Parties shall discuss the aclions to be taken to
resolve the disagreement orissue. If an agreement is not
reached, at any time the Department shall be. entitled to
initiate actions in accordance with the Contract.

1.5. Website and Social Media

1.5.1, The selected Vendor(s) must work with the Department's
- Communications Bureau to ensure that any social media or website
designed, created, or managed oh behalf of the Departmentmeets
all Department and NH DolT website and social media requirements
and policies.

1.5.2. *  The selected Vencior(s) agreés Pmteated Health Information (PHI),
Personally Identifiable Information (Plf), or other Confidential
Information sclicited either by social media or the website that is
maintainéd, stored or captured must not be further disclosed unléss
expressly provided in the Contract. The solicitation or disclosure of -
PHI, PH, or other Confidential Information is subject to Exhibit K:
Department Information Security Requirements and Exhibit I DHHS
Business Associate Agreement and all. applicable Departmient and
federal law, rules, and agreements. Unless specifically required by
the Contract and unless clear notice is provided to users of the
website or soclal media, the Contractor agress that site visitation -
raust not be tracked, disclosed or used for website or social media
analytics or marketing. .

1.58. State of New Hampshire's Websile Copyright

1541, Allright, tile and interest in the State WWWW site, including

: copyright o all Data and information, shall remain with the
State of New Hampshire, The State of New Hampshire

~shall also retain all right, title and interest in any user

interfaces and computer instructions embedded withint the
$$-2023DCYFAZCOMPE: 01 ' B ' Contiadter Jrithits éj
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2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1.

2.2.

2.3,

WWW pages. All WWW pages and any other Data or
information shall, where applicable, display the State of
New Hampshlre 5 cepyﬂght

The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule).(46 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA} of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit |, Business Associate Ags'eemem which
has been executéd by the parties.

The Contractér must’ ‘manage all confidential data related to’ this Agreement in
accordance - with the terms of Exhsb:t K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

The Contractor must comply with ali Exhibits D through K, which are attached
héreto and mcorperated by reference herein, ‘

3. Additional Terms

3.1

'3.2.

Amipacts ReSulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changés

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state -or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to madify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as o achieve
compliance therewith, '

Fedara! Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Cuimraliy and Lingulsmaﬂy
Appropriate Programs arid Services

3.2.1. The Confractor must submit, within ten {10) days of the Agreément - -
Effective Dats, a. detailed description of the communication access
and ianguage asgsistaricé services fo be provided 1d efistre
meaningful access to. programs andlor services to individuals with
limited English proficienty; individuals who are deaf or havé hearing
Joss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; anci individuals who
have speech cha!lenges :

4. Records

4.1,

¥

The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
ev;dencmg and reflecting all costs and other expens&g incufred by the
Contractorin the performance of the Gontract and all income received
orcollecled hy the Contractor. L

‘§5-2023-DCYF-$2-COMPE-01 B2.0 Céntmdtor nftiets {_"
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New Hampshim i}epartment of Hea!th and Human Services
Competency and Credit Earning Tutdring

. - | EXHIBIT B

41.2. All fecords must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedurss and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without | m’z;tation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase réquisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor timie cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrdliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records miust include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibifity for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and. all-
invoices submilted to the Department to .obtain paymﬁ-nt for such
services.

- 4.2. During-the teim of this Agreement and the, period for zetentmn iiezeunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for pumposes of audit,
£examination, excerpts.and-transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hersunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreament are to be performed -after the end of the term of this Agreement
andfor survive the tefinination of the Agreement) must terminate, provided

_ however, that if, upen review of the Final Expenditure Reporl the Department
must disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department must retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to récover such sums from the Contractor.

© SEOIANCYEARCOMPERT i 820 - Cohtractor inttials ﬂ_{)v_

Americe's Youlh Teenage Unemployrient Reduston _ 117972022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Competency and Credit Earning Tuloring

EXHIBITC

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:
1.1, 100% General funds.
2. Forthe purposes of this Agreement the Deparfment has identifisd:
2.1.  The Contractor as a Contracior, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfiliment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits C-1 and C-2, Budget Sheet,

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fiffeenth {15th) working day of the month follawing
the meonth in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice; '

41. Includes the Cantractor's Vendor Number issued upcm reg istering with “
New Hampsh:re Department of Administrative Services.

4.2, Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptabie to the
Department.

4.3. Idenfifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month,

44, Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
-that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicabls.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to injtiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and Is emailed to DCYFinvoices@dhhs.nh.gov or maited to:

Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pieasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. The Depaitiment shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (20} days,
of receipt of each inveice and supporting docurnentation for authorized
‘expenses, stbsequent to approval of the submitted invoice,

. 6. The final invoice and supparting decumentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Departmient no later than forty (40) days after the contracl
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Prows:ons Block 1.7
LCompletion Date.

D
. 882023 DCYFAZ-COMPE-O G20 Canbradthr laitias WJ «g-iw =
Amedea’s Youth Teshags Unemployment Reduction - 117972022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Compstency and Credit Earning Tutoring
EXHIBIT C

. T Notwsthstandmg Parag:aph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
- limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budgét Office may be made by written agreement of bdth parties, without
o obtalnmg approval of the Govemor and Executive Council, if needéd and

. 3usﬁfad

8. !%\ud{ts

8.1. The Contractor us! email an annual audit to dhh&.aa&@dhhé—.nh;‘gw if
any of the foliowing conditions exist;

_84A. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750, 000 of "more:in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year,

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject {6 audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to- charitable
organizations receiving support of 1,000,000 or more.

8.1:3. Condition C - The Cantractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC} reguiazrens to
submit an annual financial audit.

- 8.2; . If Condjtion A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual - SmgIe
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
“to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Cobtractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative  Requirements, Cost Principles, and  Audit
‘Requirements for Federal awards,

8.2, The Contractor shall submit-a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Conlractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on thé status of
‘implementation of the corrective action plan, :

83 ' i ,‘Gondl__tsan B or Condition C exists, the Gontractor shall submit an”
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days afterthe close of the Contraclor’s fiscal year. -

84 Any Contractor thal receives an amount equal to or greater than
'$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of thi furiding source, may be required, ata minimum, to submit annual
financial alidits peﬁormecj by an independent CPA if the Daparimant s
risk assessm@nt determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

8.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Comractor that 11e

$8-702NCYFALCOMPE-D1 . - Ca20 Contrgotor initiatd !wﬁjwm -
Amitica’s Yoiuth Teengge Unempioymest Reduciion 8 ) ‘ 11/9[ Wz
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New Hampshire Dﬁpamﬂam of Heaith and Haman Services
Campstency and Credit Eaming Tutdring

EXH?B!T C

Caontractor-shall be held liable for any state orfederal audit exceptions

_and shall return to the Department all paymenis made under the
Agreement to which éxception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

) 09
B82020D0YRAZCOMPED 20 . Contractor Inllials l ‘u

America’s Youth Teehage Unemploynient Redustion 11/9/2022
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Haw Hampshirg Bepartment of Hoalth axt Honen &?’Wiwa. _
Tontraator Namé: Aieden’s Youlh Teenage Uneniloyment Reguotion Netaork, b,

Budget Raquost for: DG*!F-M;«* Turen Compatoncy gad Credit Earning Tutordng Ca;?rr?c?

Butgst Padod W&
%

1. Salary & Wages 165,000
2 Frnge Beneras $26,250),
3. Consultacts 30
4, Equipmert
ircteief GOSTITES canial 06 SR 10 SR usnr Gsts e 2 CER B0 1 & Agpen i 50
8 G ) ,
5407 Sueplies - Bducational $1.000
|50} Sugpley-Lab $6
5.4C) Supphes « Phamacy 54
i) Supplies - Medizal 5
548} Bupples OFco ) ) ' s1000
4 Tl . ; st
7. Sofears 50
8. {9} Gther - Markating/Communications 50
B, (b} Oiher - Educalion and Tralning &0
& {u) Dther » Dihar {spedlly balwg o .
Studant Aclivities . 53,750
Ot foloase spocly) §07
Cthar fnieyse ipedly) 80
. {he? folense speily) L]
9, Bubrodipiont Contrasty £
' Folol Direet Coota 137860
Yotal indiroct Coste $13,000
TOTAL 1 $158.000

-
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BT4.0 Exhibil C-2. Budget Shoat $8-7023DCYF12-COVWPED
Now Hampshire Departmant of Health and Human Services
Contractor Namo: Aswriei’s Youth Toanags Usanrpiobment Hoduetion Metwork, e
Budget Request for: DCYEMy Turn Competoney and Crodd &am:‘ng Totorisg Garwacl
Budgel Parlod SV
iadirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%

1. Saarys Wages

2. Fringe Benefits ‘ S3500C

3. Consaltamis 50

4. Equipment

iitroct Costrals Cannol bo anplied B equipmEnt GOl per 2 UFR 2001 and Appeadtn IV 80

1o 2 CHR 200 .

54a). . Bupplies - Educational N SL000

510} Suppies«1ab - 5

4540y Guppliss ~ Phonmoty 3¢

B4y Supplies - Madizal 56

5{6) Supplies Office 51,000,

6. Travel ¢
- 7. Software 5

8. {n) Other - Markeling/Communicalions: 50

8. {b) Cther - Education end Tizining S0

8. {2} Other = Othor {apocily bolow)

Studoat Activities 58,000
Oihor {please spedly) 0 4
Crher (nicasy spadify) s
Cikor (plpase epocify) $0

0. Subraciplent Cenlracts £
Teota) Dirget Cosls $231,000

Total Indirect Costs] $16000)
TOTAL] $260,900

. 1)
( &
Contragdsr Iniaty

Daw 117972022
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New‘ ﬁamp&hira Depaﬁmem of Heaith ami Human Services
ExhibitD

ﬁﬁﬁﬁFSCAT O REGARDING DRUG: FREE WORK?’LACERE QUIRED JENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions-agrees to comply with the provigions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub, L. 100-890; Tile v Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 707 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's represertative, as identified in Sections
111 and 1.12:6f the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN IND!ViQUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ~CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
S DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations’ implementing Ser:t ons 5151-5180 of the Drug-Free
Waorkplace Act of 1988 {Pub. L. 100-890, Title V, Subtitle [; 41 U,5.C.7¢1 et seq ), The January 31,
1989 repulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 26, 1990 Federal Register {payes
21681.21691), and réquire certification by grantees (and by inference, sub—granfees and stib-
ontractors), prior to-award, that they wilkmainlain a drug-free workplace, Section 3017, B830(c} of the
fegulation provides thiat a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and suh-coniramars) that is & State
may elect to make onecertification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out balow i5'a
material reprasentalion of fact upon which reliance Is placed when iheagemy awards the grant. False
certification o violation of the cerification shallbe gmunds for suspension.cf payments, suspension or-

“fermination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form shmz!d
'gand. it to: .

Commissionar

NH Departmient of Health and Human Séivices
128 Pleasant Girest,

Concord, NH 03301 5505

1. The grante& nemf‘ea thatit will or will continue to prov;de a drug-free workplace byr
1.1, Publishing a statement notifying employees thal the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is' prohibited in the grantee's

workplace argl specifying the actions-that will be taken against employees for violation of such
‘prohibition; ‘

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform smployees about .
124, The. dangers of drug abuse in‘the workplace;
4.2.2. Thegrantes's policy of masnta:mng & drug-fres workplacs;

- 128, Any available drig cotnseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance progiams: and
124, The géaathes that may be imposed upon emp!oye"és for drig ablse viclatidns
- : ocourring in the workplace;

1.3, Making if a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the gmni be
given a copy of the statement required by parag raph (a);

14, Nolifying the employee in the-stalement required by paragraph (a} that, ‘as'a coadmon of
employment under the grant, the employee will
14.4.  Abide by the terms of the statement and
1.4.2.  Nofify the: empicyer in wriling of his of her cofvistion for a vidlation of & criminal drug

statute obeurring in the workplace no later than five cilendér days aftersuch
cehvietion;

1.8, Notifying the agericy in writing, within ten calendar days after raceiving netice unter
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employse or otherwlse receiving actual notice. of such canviction.
Employars of convicted emiployees must provide notice, including positioniitie, to every grant
officer on whose gtani actxvaty the convicted employee was working, unless;the Federal )| agency

Exhibll D ~ Certification ragarding Drug Fres Vendor infifals S
. Workplace Requitements ) L Aa9fr022
CUIDHIE 16743 - Page.1-of 2 o © gt T SIEVe
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Now Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such nofices, Notica shalf include the
identification numher{s) of each affagtad grant; i g
18. Taking one of the' following actions, within 3Q calendar tays of receiving notice under -
_subparagraph 1.4.2, with respact fo-any employee who is o corivicted
1.6.4. Tekingappropriate personnel action against such:an employee, up toand including
termination, E6nsistent with the requzremenls of the Rehabsiﬁahor Act of 197388 -
‘amended; or
18.2, Requmng such employee to pamcipaie sat:siactomiy inadrug abuse assistance or
rehabifitation prograny approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement; or other appropriale agency,
1.7. ‘Making'a good faith effortto continue to maintain a. drug-frea wofkp ace through
'mplamen ation of paragraphs*i ‘i 1.2,1.5, 14,15, and 1.8,

2. The'grantea may insetin the spave providad below the s:te(s) for the peﬁormance of work donein
connection with the specific grant,

Place of Parfcrméﬁ{ié-'('s{fééi.,address, cily, county, state, zip code) (lis! each location)

-

Check B ¥f thefe are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Narne: Americas youth Teenage Unemployment Reduction w:

\ Dongmdbr .
1i/9y2022 - g Allisen jéw
- . Date . . . Name:- Al 1 Joseph

Tl pracutive pirector
| ’ Cﬁ
Bt D {';emfmiacm reparding Drag Free . Viendor inflats S
- Workplace Requirements ot A1/872022
Pate
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Hew Hampshim Department of Health and Human Services-
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBRYING

The Vendor identified In Section 1 .3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the prowsmns of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-1271, Government wide Guidance for New Restidctions on Labbymg and
31 U.8.C. 1362, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.1
and 1.12 of the General Provisions exectethe followirig Centification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVIGES - CONTRAGTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EQUCATION - CONTRAGTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable pragram covered):

*Temporary Assistance fo Needy Families urider Title IV-A
* *Child Support Enforcement Program undar Titte IV-D

*Social Services Block Grant Program under Titie XX

*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child- Care Developmient Block Grant utider Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowiedge and belief, that:

1, No Federal appropriated funds have been pald or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or altempling to infiuence an cfficer or employes of any agency, 8 Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congwss or an employes of a Membaer of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal éontract, continuation, renewal, ameddmant, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement:(and by spocific mailion
sub-grantee or sub-contractof).

2. if any funds cther than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid 2c any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or-an-employea of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or'sub-
contractor), the unciersigned shailcmnlete and submit Standard Form LLL, {Disclosure Formto

- Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instriictions, attached and identified as Standard Exhiblt B-1)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification. be included in the award
documnent for sub-awards at all tiers (including sitbcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under. grants,
loans, and.cooperative agreements) and !ha: all subsrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a-material représentation of fact upinn whi ich refiance was-placed when this transaction
was mads or'entered into, Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for maksng o4 eniermg into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Titls 31, U. 8. Code. Any person who fails to'file ihe required
certification shall be sibject4o a civil penally of not [8ss than $10,000 and not more ihan $100,000 for
each such failure,

Véndor Name: anericas youth Teenage Uneniployment Reduction!

11/9/2022
Date

C
Eshiblt £ ~Cértification Regarting Lobbying ' Vendor fitials

. : 11797 2522
CLUHNSA 0743 Page 1 of g S
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CERTSFSCATIC)& REGARDING: BEBA?E?&’?ENT SUSPENSION .
AND OTHER RESPGN&!Q LIYY M&WERS

The Confractor identified in Saction 1,3 of the General Provisions agrees fo comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the Prasident, Executive Order 12549 and-45 GFR Part76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other R@spensmm:y Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1. 12 of thé General, messcns execute the fol owmg
Certification '

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CER’i’}FlCA‘ﬂON
T BY signing ‘and submitling this proposal (contraat) the prospective primary pammpant is providing the
certification set out below: »

2. The inabilily of a person fo provide the cerl tfucat:on required below will not necessarily resu!! in denial

- of paticipation in this covered transaction. Jf necessary, the:prospactive pariicipant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will e
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
patticipant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall ci;squa:sfy such person from participation in
this transaction. .

3, The cemf cation in this clause is @ material representation of'fact‘upcn which refance was placed
when DHHS determinad to enter into this ransaction. If itis later determined that the prospeciive
primary participant knowingly rendered an eroneous cerlification, inaddition to other remedies
avallable to the Federal Government, DHHS may. terpinate this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary partzc;pam shall provide immadiate written ncmce tothe DHHS agency to
whom this proposal {coniract) Is submitied if at any time the pro&pective pifviary panticipant learms
that its cerdtification was érroneous when subme&ted or has becoms erronesus. by reason of changed
circumstances,

5. The térms “covered transac%ion "*“debarred,” “suspénded,” “ineligible,” lower lier covered |
transaction [participant,” “person,” *primary covered transaction,” *principal ! “proposai and
“voluntarlly excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

-Coverape sections of the rules xmpiementmg Executive Order 12546; 45 CER Part 76. See the
attached ﬁeﬂni{mns

6. The pmspe&tzve primary pa:ttc»pant agrees by submitting this pmposa (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowlfigly-efiterinto any- lower tier coverad
‘transaction with a parscm whuls debarred, suspended, dedlared ineligiblé, o voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS..

7. T"ne prospective prmary partsczpant further agrees by submitling this proposal that it wil mdude the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lowat Tier'Covered Transactions;” provided by DHHS, vithout modification, in all lower tier coversd-
transactions and in al solicitations for lower t;er covered-iransattions.

8. f?x pattisipantin a ccwered wansaction may re!y upon a ertification of: a prowmiwe participant in a
lower tier covered transzction.that Itis ot debarred, suspended, ingligiblé, or involuntarily excluded
from the tovered transaction, unjéss it knows that ihe certification is erronacus, A participant may
decide the method and Fequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals, Each
participant may, but-is riot required to, check the Nonprocurement List {of exc luded parties):

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require es%ablzshmam of 2 system.of records
in-order o fender in gocd faith the certification required by his clause. The knswledge and

ExlﬂbrtF Cenification Regarding Debarment, Sua;ws’aﬂ . Tontragler initials

[ And Cther Responsiily Mattets 11/972022
CUDHHENITI . Pagen of 2 . Dale :



* DocuSign Envelope ID: 560CAF2D-D126-4E72-AF20:5CC3EQ4CASF7 '
: PaN

DocuSign Emiqpeis):‘smbzzm1?64:982-353A~ccm?"'50314m

New Hampshir& Dopartment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

mformaﬁon of a participant is not required ta éxceed that which is normally possessed by a prudﬁnt
person in'the ordinary course of husiness dealings, , i

0. Exceptfor transactions authorized under paragraph 8 of these Instructions; if a participantin &

: covered transaction knewmgty enters into-a lower tier covered transaction with a perSonwho is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation ifi this transaction; in
eddition o other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction

~for cause or defaull. N

PRINARY COVERED TRANSACT;ONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best.of s kncw!edge and belief, that it and Tts
principals:
114, dre not pmsent!y debarred, suspendad, proposed fcr debarméht, deelared inei&g;&;l&, or
voluntarily excluded from coverad transactions by any Federal department ofr agency,
11.2. have'not within'a threa-year period preceding this pmpcsaE {contract) beeri convicted of or had
a ¢ivil judgment rendered against thern for commission of fraud or & criminal offense in ™
‘connection with obtaining, attempling to obtain, or performing & public {Federal, State or-local) -
fransaction or a contract.under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antifrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification o ﬁestructian of
records, making false statements, or recéiving stolen property; -
11.3. arenot presenﬁy indicted {or otherwise aiminally or clvilly charged by a governmental eﬁzry
{Federal, State or localywith commission of any of the offenseg enumeraled in paragraph {1}(b)
 of this certification; and
11.4. hava not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more putﬂsc
transactions {Fecieral State or-lecal) terminated for cause or default, '

12, Where the pmspegtwe p_rtmary.part ivipantis unable to cerify 1o any of the statemants Inthis
corkfi caticm such prospectivé participant shall attach an explanation to'this proposal {contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS -

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal {contract), the pmspec&:v& lower tier participani, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, ceitifies to the best of its knowledge and belief thatt and its principals:
13.1. arenot presantly debarred suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

volurttarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13,2, where the prospactive lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the-above, such
pmspecﬁve participant shall attach an explanation o this proposal {contract),

. 14 The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submiiting this propoeal (contract) that it will
include this duse entitfed *Cartifieation Regarding: Dabarmenﬁ, Suspension, lneisgib lity, and
voiuntary Exclusion - Lower Tler Covered Transdctions,” without modification, in alf lower-tier covered
transactwns and in all snltcsiamns for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Americas Youth Tegnage Unewplcyment Reductis

‘ . - Dosagigned by
11/9/2622 Qu;m sl
Date - T AT 150N Joseph

7 ’ ! Tite: Execuvive Director

C

Eahibit F - Conification Regarding Debarment, Suspansion Contracter Iritials mm
- And-Otifer Rasponsiniity Matlers NIGF022

~ CUUNEIAKITLS _ Page 2ol 2 ) DBl e
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CERTIFIGATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAININGTO.
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATIGN, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS '

The Contractor identfi et In Section 1.3.of the Generat Provisions.agrees by signature af the Contractor’s.
represeniative as identified n Sections 1.11.and 1.12.0f.the General Provisions, to execite the following
certification:

“Contractor will comply, and will require any subgranmes or sibconlractors fo comply, with any appi:cabi &
fadsral nondiscrimination tequiremen%s which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime. Control and Safe Strests Act of 1968 (42 U.8.C. Section 3788d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices.orin
the cielwery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religior, national origin, and sex. The At
requires cerfain reclpzants to produce an Equal Employment Qpportunity Plan;

- tha Juveniié Justicé Dalinguency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U, $.C. Section §672{b)} which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of ths Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, elther in employment practices of in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis.of race; color, refigion, national ongm and sex, The Actincludés Equal
Empioyment Opportunily Pfan requxrements

-the Civil Rights Act of 1964 {42 U.8.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits racipients of faderal financial
assistange from dtsc:ﬂm;nat:ng on the basis of race, golor, or national origin in any program or activity);

«the Rehabilitation A_z;{ of 1873 29 U.8.C. Sectiqn 794}, which prohiblts reciplents.of Federal financial
“assistance from diseriminating on the basis of disability: in regard to employmient ard the delivery of

services or benefits; in any program or activity,

«the Amencans with Disabilities Act of 1980 (42 U.5.C. Secuons 12131-34}, which prohitits

discrimination and engures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State. and 16cal
government services, public accomimodstions, commercial facrhties and traisportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 1.8.C. Sections 1681, ’1683, 1685-88), which prohibiis
discrimination onthe basis of sex in fedérally assisted education programs;

“«the Age Discrimination Ast of 1975 (42 U.8.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age'in programs or aclivities receiving Federal financial dssistance. H does not include
employmant discimination;

-~ 28 C.ER, pt. 31 (U8, Department of Jugtice Regulations — QJJDP Grart Programs), 28 CF.R. pt.42
(U:5. Depariment of Justics Régulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Oppottunity; Policies.
and Protedures); Executive Order No. 13279 {squal protection of the iaws for faith-based and c;emmumxy
organizatiois); Execiitivé Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and palicy-making.
priteris for pﬁf’iﬁ&%’ﬁhlp&\’wth faith-based and nezghbarhaod orgenizations,

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38.(U.] S Department of Just&ce Regulations - Equal Treatment for. Faa%h—Based

Drgantza; ions); and Whtsﬂebinwar protections 41 L.8.C, 84712 and The National Defense Auihanzaimn
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. 1. 112239, enacted January 2, 20‘13) the Pilot Prograrm for
‘Enhancement of Contradt Employee Whistieblower Protections, which protects employees afainst
reprisal for ceitain whistle blowing activities in'connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out bielow iS4 material representation &f fact upon which reflance is placed: when the
agency awards the.grant. False.certification or viotation of the certification shall be grounds for
stispension of paymenis, suspension or term[natmn of grants, or goverament wide suspension or

debarment. -
' I
Exhibi G 1 &j
Gontractor ek
Cxwmca’sm 6 Cooptancd Wi mqwerrmix prertsining {n Faderst Nordtisstimination, Equal Troatnant of Fubs-fobed O pirieations
) ig Wistloblsser protsations
ARt ] ‘ . 11/97/2022
Rew, 10523414 ) . Pago iof 2 Dale s,



DocuSign Enveiape 1D: 560CAF2D-D126-4E72-AF20.5CC3EGMCASETY

DocuSign Envelope iD: 314202211 1FEA882-BECA-COTATED14ER

Hew Hampshire E}ﬁepaﬁmem of Health and Human Services
‘ Exhibit G

Inthe eventa Federal or State court or Faderal or State admm:atratwe agency makes a fi ndmg of
discrimination after a due process hearing dn the: grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, ‘or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward d.copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Depattment of Health and Human Services, and
.. lotheDeparmant of Heaim and Human Serwces Office of the Ombudsman.

“The Contracior 1dent1€' ed in Seclion 1.3 of the Generai Provisions agrees:by signature of the Contractoi's
representative as identif ed in Sections-1.11:and 1,12 of the Genaral Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

.

1. By signing and Suibraitt ng this proposal {contract) the Contractor agrees to.comply with the provisions
indicated ahove,

Contractor Name: Angricas Youth Tesnage Unemployment Reductic

~Boeubigrid by

11/9/2022 Mlisow Joseele
Date ‘Name: ATTi56M Joseph
Title!  pyvacutive pirector
N
%,
ExhbH G o | U..

Contractor Inlials
Centification of me;ﬁmum zaqme!fmis pﬂzm:mg fo Fedyrs) F%mé sediniiution, .‘Eq:&! “Sroutinunt of Fnz!n Hased Crparizations
End Whistlohieer protscbons .
eRig . 131/8/2022
Rew, §0mH13 Page 2 of 2 R Date
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Public Law 103-227, Part C -Environmental “I‘abacce Smoke, plgo known'as the Pro-Childreh Act of 1994

(Act), requires that $moking not be perriltted in any portion of afy-ndeor facility bwned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regulariy-for the provisio of heatth, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal pragrams either
directly or through State or 1ocal govemments by Federal grant, contract,.loan,‘or loan guarantee. The
law doss not apply o children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment, Failure
.o comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil mmetary penally of up to

S1 800 per day andior the imposition of an admmistra;wa comphiance nrder on the respensnbie antity;

The Confractor identfied in Saction 1.3 of the General Provisions agraes, by. %%gnature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1,11 and 1,12 of the General Provis fons, to execute the foliowmg
-ceftification::

1. By signingand submatﬁng this contract, the Contracidr agrees to maka reasoniable sfforts to comply
“withi all applicabla provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part G, known s the Pro-Children Actof 1994,

‘Contractor Name: Americas Ybut:h Teenage Unemployment Reductio
: " Doeuliignad by;
11/9/2022 (v{&sam, jéscf{u

s Date o . Name: AlT1507 joseph
) ' Title: Executive Difector

| le
Bt H — Ger%iﬁcaﬁonﬁé&;éing Contractor nltials '

Environmantal Tobaceo Smoke _ - T1/5/2022
CUTHIA1ETIA . JPagetéf CHE e
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HEALTH lNSURANCE PORTAEIUTY AND. AGGOBNTﬁﬁ!Li?Y ACT
USINESS AS |ATE. AGREEMENT

The Cortractor identified i in Section 1,3 of the General Provisions of the Agreéement agreas to

~ comply with the Heaith Insurance Partab;ltty and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and

* with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts: 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, ‘Business
Associgte” shall mean the Contractor and subcontracters and agents of the Contractor that
réceive, use orhave access to protected health information under this Agreernent and * ‘Covered
Entity” Shd“ mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Hunian Services,

{1} , Definitions.

4. “Bredch”.shall have the same maaning as the term “Breach™ in secﬁcn 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulatsons

b. “Business Assocfate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

¢. Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term'in sect on 160.163 cf Title 45,
Ccde of Federal Regulations.

4. "Designated Record Set” shall have the same meanmg as the tarm "d@s;gnatad record sel’
in45 CFR Section 164.501.

é. “‘Data Aggregaﬂc " shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR _'
Bection 164.501. ,

1. “Health Care Onaraﬁons shall have the same meariing as the term “heaith care. aperat;ens
in45 CFR Section 164.501. ]
T g, “HiTECH Act! means the Health Information Technology for. Ecentmic and’ C{m cal Health
Act, TitleX!i!, Subtitle D, Part 1 &.2 of the American F{ecnvery and Reinvestment-Act of-
2008,

. h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accouritability Act ef 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Heaiih ¥
_ Information, 45 CFR Parls 160, 162 and 184 and amendments thereto,

i, “lnd vrciu"ai"‘ ‘shall have the same meaning as the term “iidividual’ in 45 CFR Section 160:103
anct shall indlude a person who quialifies as a personal representative in aceordance with 45
.C%’«R Section 184.501(g).

i “Privacy R;glg”‘ shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
) Information at45 CFR Parts, 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
E)apartmeni of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected l;jggi;h Infarmation” shal have the same meaning as the term pmtecteci heatth
information™in 45 CFR Section 180.103, limited to the information created or received-iy

Business Assoclate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. - [Z )
R0t _ Bgtabit] Coritractor Inlltals
. Health Insurangg Postability Act L ‘
Buslness Assoclate Agreemont I179/72022
Page 101 6. . DA
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)

‘Required by Law” shall have the same fieaning as the term “required by iaw” in4s CFR
Section 1 84 103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Dapaﬂment af Health and Human Samces or -

his/her designee:

“Secourity Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Pmtacﬂaon of Eiectromc Frotected-
Health Information at 45°CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health Inforination that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information Unusable,
unfeadable, ormdecspharab!e to unauthorized individuals and is dawtnped or endorsed by
a standards developing 0rgamzatlon thatis accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Othier Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45.C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from ttme to ttme andthe
HITECH ™

Ac:t

ﬂus;inessﬁssaciatﬁ Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Heéalth
Information (PHI) except as reasonab?y necessary to provide the samices autlined under
Exhibit A of the, Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to alt
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Assodiaté may use or disclose PHI: :
1. For the proper management and administration of the Business Assaclme,
I As requn‘ed by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d, below; or
. For data aggregatlon pPUrposSes fnrthe health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To’ %he extent Business Associate is perm;tted under the Agreement to, disclose PHito a
third party, Busmss Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will b held canfidentially and
used o further diselose anly as requared by law or for the. purpose for which it'was
distlosed to the thifd party; and (i) arcagreement from such third parly to notafy Busm@ss
_A:ssociate, in accoz’dance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, ard Breach Notn” cation
‘Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extert il has obtainéd’
knowledge of such breach.

" The Busingss Associgte shall not, unless such disclosurs is reasonably necessary ta.
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response’to a
request for disclosure on the basis thatit is required by law, without first notifying
Govered Entity 6 thai Covered: Enttlﬁy has an opportunity to objectto.the d;sc:tosure and
Ap seek sppmpnate relief, I Covered Enlity objects to such disclosure, the Busj wfj

w4 Eth;bu r Con{mﬁlar fritints

Mealth insuranm& Portability Ast .
Bishess Assotlate Agreement . . 11 /'g}'zfgz‘z
Page2ol b . : Dale e
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{3)

312014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI untif Covered Entity has exhausted al
femediss. . . .

If the Covered Entity hotifies the Busifess Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to

be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or sacurity
safeguards of PHl pursuant fo the Privacy and Security Rule, the Busingss Associate

shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation, of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional securlty safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate,

The Business Associaté shall natify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information niot provided for by the Agreement including breachias of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may haveé an impact on the
protatted health information of the Covered Entity.

The ﬁus_iness Associate shall immediately perform a risk assesement when it becomes ~
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shalt include, but not be
limited to: i .

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers. and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protectsd health information or to- Whom, the
disclosure was made; _ ‘

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk {o the protected health information has been
mitigated. " ‘ :

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the firdings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Coverad Entity.

. The Businés,s Associate shaifi,‘compiy with all sections of the Privacy, Security, ahd

Breach Nolification Rule.

Business Associate shall make availablé alf of its internal policies and prosedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Enlity to the Secretary for
purpases of determining Covered Entity’'s compliance with MIPAA ahd the Privacy and
Security Ruls, :

Business Assosidte shall require all of its business asso_ciates that recelve, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, 1o -agree in wiiting to adhere to the same
restrictions and ‘conditions on the use and disclosure of P! contained herein, inciuding

the duty- to return or’destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity

.agreements with Contragtor’s intended business associates, who will be receivif g‘[ﬁm

shall be considered a direct third parly beneficiary of the Contractor's bq@inassxaffggiate

. Exhibit1 . Contraciof Ialh s
Health Insurde Portabilty Act ' ‘
‘Business Assosiale Agresmant 1l/a/2022

ie :

Pagedofo ’ [3a
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights.of enforcement and indemnification frof such
busingss associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contracl provisions (P-37) of this Agregment for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information. :

Within five (8) business days of receipt of a written request fror Covered Entity,

~ Business Associate shall make available during norfial businiess hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to theuse and disclosure

of PHE to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Cavered Entity to determine
Business Associate's.compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of réceiving-a written request from Covered Entity,

. Business Assotiate shall provide access to PH! in a Designated Record Set to the

Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in arder to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. . -

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written tequest from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in-a Deslgnated Record
Set, the Business Associale shall make such PHI avallable to- Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fuifill its .

- obligations under 45 CFR ‘S'eciionj 64.526,

afz0t4

Business Associate shall documgsit such disclosures-of PHI and information refated to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity fo respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Sedtiof

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written réquest from Covered Entity fora

. request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Busingss Associate shall make available

to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its.obligations
to.provide an accounting of disclosures with réspett to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

Inthe event.any individual requests access o, amendment of, or-accounting of PHI
directly froin the Business Assaglate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) ~
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Caviered Enlity shall have the

résponsibility of responding to forwarded reqitests. Howevar, if forwarding the

individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Eniity or the Business
Associale fo violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Secwrity Rule, the Business Assotiate

shall instead respond to the individual's request as réc;ﬁireci‘by}such law and notify

Covered Entity of éqrch Fasponse as.soon as practica{a!e,

Withiin ten (10) business days of térfiination of the Agresment, far any reasen, the:

Business Associate shall retuin ordestroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI

received from, or ¢realed or received by the Business Associate in.connection with the:
Agresrent, and shall not retaln-any copies or back-tip tapas of such PHL.. freturm or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed 1o i

the Agreement, Business Associate shall cantinue to eXtend the protedtions of the

Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHi to thesess
purposes that make the returmn or destruction infeasible, for so long as Bu_sinessj 13

Exhibit Contractor Initinle
Heolth Inswance Porlatitlity Ast .
Business Aszocizte Agrasnan 11/8/72022
Page 4 0l6” Date, —
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(5)

(8}

014

Assoriate mamtains such PHI. If Covered Entity, i in zts sole discretmn requ:res that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shail certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shail notify Business Associate of any charzges or hmamtfoﬁ(s) imits
Notice of Privacy Practices prov:decl to individuals in sccordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affact Busmess Associate’s -
use or disclostre of PHI,

Covered Entsty shall promptiy notily Business Assoczate of any changes in, or. revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under.this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section

"164 508 or45.CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 GFR 164,522,
to the extent that.such restriction may affect Business Associate’s, use or cifsc;iaszzre of
PHL

' Terminatian for Cause

In additionto Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {P«s?) of this.
Agreement the Covered Entity may smmed;ateiy terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associalé of the Business Associate
Agresment set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covéred Entity may either immediately

_terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate 1o cure the

alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. # Covered Entity
determines that neither termination norclie is feassbie Cﬁvere{i Entity shall report the
mlanan to the Secretary. .

Miscéllaneous

Definitions,and Rgg' L’aiatgm' References. All terms Used, but not otherwise defined herein,

- shall have the same meaning as those terins in the Privacy and Securly Rule, amended

from time to time, A reference in the Agreeniesit, as amended fo include this Exhibit 1, to

a Section i the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effectoras

amanded,

Amerndment. Covered Ent ity and Business A';%maée agree to take sich actioh 28 is

necessary to amend the Agreement, from fime to time as is nacesgary for Coveérsd

Entity to comply with the changes inthe requireiments of HIPAA, the Privacy and -
Security Rule, and apphcabie federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Buginess Associate ackn{)wle&ger@ ihat it has no ownersh;p ights
wﬁh respect o the PHI pm\nﬁarj by or ¢redted on hehalf of Covered Entity.

to penmit Covered f:’:ﬁn‘uty to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule

Extiltit ) “Gontemctor Inftiids
Health insurance Ponability Aot
Buss ness Assockata Agreamant . 11 78942022
Paga 506 ' '

Inferpretation. The parties agree that any ambiglity in the Agreemtant shall be ;@e&
&
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e. Sedreqgation. if any term or condition of this Exhsb%t { or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall riot affect other terms or
conditions which cain be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this ehd the
.ierms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared saverabie

A Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (31, the

defense and indempification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
- standard. termss and. condit;cns (P-37}); shall survive the termination of the Agréerment:

IN WETNE§S_'WHERE®F,. the patties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit'l,

Department.of Health and Human Services Anericas Youth Teenage Unemp‘leyrr&nt Reduttion Nétwork

. hedtatany: j tagsgl.bp Contractor
Joseph E. Ribsam, Jr. - . | llisaw Jaseels
Stg;ﬁaiure gf Authorized Representatzve Signature of Authorized. Representative
Joseph E. Ribsam, ir., ' ?t{l}-"i son Joseph ‘ |
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Directur -
. ‘ Executive Director '
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized’ Representaﬁwe
11/9/2022 1is9/2022
Date ' Date

32044 . . ‘ Exhitat) , Contratlor IRl Sy

Health Insuranca Porability Acl . .
Business Associate Agreement ' 1L/9/2022
p&g& 6 O_f . g g}.ag'gm..:......_
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CERTIFIGATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
S < AGT(FFATA) COMPLIANGE :

- The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime swardees of individual
Fedsral grants equal to or greater than $26,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related t6 executive compeansation and associated firshdier sub-grants 6f $25,000 or more, if the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result ina total award equal to or over
$25,000, the awdrd is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the.award, - _

In aiccordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the
Department of Health and Human Sarvices (DHHS) must raport the following information for.any
subaward or contract award Subject.to the' FFATA reporting requirements:

1. ‘Name of entity '

Amount of award

Funding agency ) , :

NAICS codefor contracts 7 CFDA program number for grants

Program source )

Award file descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

Location of the entity

Principle place of performance : - : ,

Unique identifier of the entity (UEI #) . -

0.-Total compensation and hames of the top five executives if

10,1, More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

. . -févenues are greater than $25M annually and , )

' 10.2. Compensation information is net already available through reporting to the SEG,

SPENOo AL

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, 'phus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made. _ . ‘
The Contracter identified In Section 1.3 6f the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountabllity and Transparency Act, Public Law. 108-282 and Public Law 110.252,
énd 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compansation Information), and.further agrees
* 1o have the Contractor’s representative, as-identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Cerification: ™ - .
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financlal Accountabllity and Transparency Act. '

"

Contractor Name; Anericas Youth Teenage Unemp'ipyn}!éht Roeductic

. B} ﬂmuﬁqnnd by
M/d/2022 : | Mlison, Josegh,

B : Name Al 11501 J05apn ,
. - Title:  zyecurive piractor

[+
- ) Exivit J - Cortification Regarting the Federsal Fundiﬁg Contractor Iniiaks C - ‘
Acceuntability And Transparency At (FFATA) Compliance 11/972027
w@ﬂﬂ&ﬂ wr )  Passtofz Data " W E
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FORM A

As the Contractor ;danﬁﬁed in Sechfm 1.3 of the General Provisions, 1 cartify that the responses o the
below listed questions are true and accurate, -

1. The UEI {BAM,.gov) number for your entity is: WEML&}M%

2. In your husiness or organization’s pfaceﬂing,compieiad fiscal year, did your business or organization.
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual. gross revenus in U.S. federal contracts, subcontréots,
anns grants, sub-grants, andior cooperative égmements: and (2) $25,000,0600 or more in annual
gross revenues from, U.8. federal contracts, subccntracts lcxans grants, subgrants, andfor
cooperative agfesments?

X NO _ YES
Ifthe answer to #2 above is NO, stop here.
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answar the following:

3. Does the public have access to information.zbout the compensation of the executives in your
business or-organization through periodic repdrts filed under section 13{a) or 15{d}.of the Securities
Exchange Actof 1934 {15 U.8.C. ?Bm(a} 780{d)) or section 6104 of the Intemal Revenue Code of

19867

e NO X YES >
I the answei'to #3 atove is. YES, stop fiere ,
f the answer to #3 above Is NO, please answer the following:

4, Thehames and compansation of the five most highly campensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: : Amount;
Name: . : Amount:
Name: . Amoun_t:'
Nama: ~ " Amount:

. Name: ' : Amount:

C
Exhibit J - Codification Regarding the Federal Funding Confractor ini fiats

Accountabilty And T:ansparerzcy Act (FEATA) Complianch . :1 1/9 ;m? 2
CUHHSA 10713 Page 2.0f )
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A, Definitions
The fo!!ov;ing terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. “"Breach’ means the loss of contiol, compromiss, unauthorizéd tisclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations “where” persons other than authorized users and for an other ‘than
authorized purpose have access or potenhal areess to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
information, * Breach” shall have thé same meaning as the térm “Breach” in. section

T 164 402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. “Camputer Security Incident” 'shall have the. same meanmg “Computer Secur:ty'
Incident® in section two (2) of NIST Publication B00-81, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards anid Techncsiegy. LS. Department
of Commerce. :

3. “Confidential Information” or “Coifidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by cne party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public

- assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Pmt&sﬁeﬁ Health lnformat;on and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, receivad from or an behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services {DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and dgsposman s governed by
stale or federal law or regulation. This information includes, bt is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (Pl), Personal Financial
Information (PF), Federal Tax Information (FTD), Sovial Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidemlai information.

4. “BEnd User” means any person or entity {ex., contractor, aoniractor's employee, '
bisiness associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, elc.) ihat receivés
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance wath the terms of this Contract.

5. “HIPAA" meansthe Health Insurance Portability and Acsountability Act of 1986 and the
reégulations promulgated thereunder,

8. “Incident’ means an act that potentially vivlates an exp!;cst or :mplled securtty policy,”
which intludes attempts (sither failed or succassful) to gazn unatithorized access to a
system or its dala, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a'system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firrnware, "or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, ioss
of misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or eiagzggwnic‘

45, Last update 10/00718 : Bl K Conteattor iﬁ%iass{:_w
DHHES Informetion

Securlly Reguirements L Yi/8/72022
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10,

1.

12,

mai, a!i ‘of which fay have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destiuction: .

“Open Wireless Network® means any network or segment of a_network that is
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of Information .
Technstagy or delegate as a protectad network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unehcrypted P, F’Ft
PH or confidential DHHS data,

*Personal Information” (or *PI*) means information wh;ch can be-used to distinguish
or trace anindividual's Identaly -such as thelr nams, social securily number, personal

JInformation as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biomelric records, etc.,

alone, or when cambmed with other personal or identifying information which is imke{i

“or firkable to a spemf ic mdtwduai such as-date and pEace of birth, mother's maiden

nams, elo,

“Privacy Rule’ shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 180 and 164, promulgated under HIP.M by the United
States Department of Health and Hurman Services.

“Prolected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Infarmation” in the HIPAA anaey Rule at 45 CF.R. §
160.103. ‘

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Pmtecﬁeon of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R, Part 184, Subpart C, and dmendments

“thereto,

“Unsecured Protecled Health Information” means Prnt@_&tad Health Information that is

* not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information

unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable fo unauthorized indi viduals and Is
déveloped or éndorsed by a standards developing organization that is aceredited by

* the American National Standards Institute.

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Businigss Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor rnust not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary a5 outlined under this Contract, Further, Contracter,
inchiding but not limited to all its directors, officers; employees and ageﬁis must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would ccmst tute & violation

of the Privacy and Security Rule.

.2, The Ccni’ractcr must not disclose any Caﬁfadenttai Informiation in response to a
211
. E g4
VB, Last update 10/08718 Extilbit K . Contrastorlafials,
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raquest for disclosure oh the basis that it is required by law, in rasponse tm &
subpoena, ste., without -first naotifyving DHHS so that DHHS has an opportumiy to
consent.or object to the disclosure. :

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractar that DHHS has dgreed to be bound by additional

restrictions over and above those uses or distlosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to ‘the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additiona) restrictions and ‘must not disclosé PH] in violation of such addifional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards,

-4, The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disel losed. to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for

any other purposes thatarg not indicated in this Contract,

8: The Contractor agreaes 1o grant access to.the data to the authorized rapresentazzves

~of DHHS for the. purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract..

. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF SATA

1.

Apglication Engryption. If End User is traﬂsmlttmg DHHS data ccnfammg
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by ah éxpert knowledgeable in cyberd security and that 3asd
application’s ercryption capabiliies ensUre secure transmission via the internet.

Computer Disks and Portable. Storage Devices. End User may riot use computer.disks
or portable.storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmxtimg DHHS
data.

Encrypted Email. End User may only emp!oy email to transmat Gonfident] ai Data if
emall is encrypted and being senl to and being received by email addresses of
persons. authorized 1o receive such information.

Encrypted Web:Sife, If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confi demaas
Data, the-secure socket layers {88L) must be used and the web shte must be
securs. SSL encrypis dafa fransmitted via a Web site.

File Hostirig Services, dalso known as File Sharing Sites. End User may notuse file .
hostmg services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

. 'Grcund Mail Service. End User may only transmit Canfi dential Data via Certified ground

mall within the continental U.8. and when sént to a named individual,

Lapmpa and PDA. If End User is employing: portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data sald devices must be encrypted and password-proteciad.

. ‘Open Wirgless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential, Data via an open

‘- Ci
M5, Lasl updite 10109118 Eadiiblt K Corractotiniiiglg ==
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m

i

w%reiasé network. End User fmust -employ :a virtual private network (VPN) when

remotely transmitting via'an open wireless network.

Remote User Communication. If End Usef is employirg remote communication to |
access or transmit. Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be

installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitled or accessed. .

10.

SSH File Transfor Protocol (SFTP), aleo known.as Secure File Transfer Protoéal. If
End User is employing -an ‘SFTP to trafismit Confidential Data, End User wil
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTF folders and subsfolders used for transmitting Cenfidential Data wil
ke coded for 24-hour aulo-deletion cycle {j.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours). <

- Wireless Dévices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Datal via wirelé‘ss_‘._devk;es, all

data must be encrypted'to prévent inappropriate disclosure of information,

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any da_rivaii%ze of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such tiffie, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any-*
derivative irv whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this.Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retertion

1, The Contractor agrees it will not store, ’iran_sfer or process data collested in
-connaction with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the' United
States. This physical location requirement shall also.apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud servicé or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovary locations, ‘ )

2. The Contractor agrees 10 enstre propsr secufity monitoring capabifities are in
place to detact polential -securfty events that can impact Stale of NH systems
andfor Department confidential information for contractor provided systéms,

3. The Contractor agrees 1o provide security awareness and education for its End

_ Users in support of prétecting Depéartment confidential information, I

4. The Contractor agrees 10 retain all electronic-and hard copies of Confidential Data
in.a secure location afd identilied in sectior IV. A.2 _

5. The Contractor agrees :Confidéntial Data stored in & Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant sclution dnd comply with all applicablé statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and secdiity. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, aﬂntif;pfwara,. and anti-malware utilities. The envirenment, a5 a

‘ L]
| : ‘ f}
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whole, must have aggressive infrusion-detection and firewall protection.
The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's

Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosti ing

Infrastructure,

B. Disposition

1

If the Contractor will mamtam any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contracter will maintain 2 documented process for
securely disposing of such daia upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshsre data deatmyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a pail of ongoing, emergency, and o disaster

. recovery operations. When no fonger in use, electronic media ccntammg State of

New Hampshire data shall be rendered unreccverahie via a secure wipe program

in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media

sanitization, ~or otherwise physically “destroying the medie {for example,

degaussing) as described i NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines

for Media Sanitization, National Institule of Stendaids and TQChnOIOva U 8.
Department of Commerce.. The, Contractor- will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destrusfion, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate dala has been propetly destroyed -and validated. Where applicable,

reguiatory and. professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly

evaluated by the State and Gonlractor prior to destruction,

Uniless ctharwsse specified, within thirty (30) days. ‘of the temmination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

Unless othefwise specified, within thity (30) days of the termination of this

Contract, Gontractor agrees-to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, aiso known'as secure data w ping;: '

. ‘PROCEQURESFOR SECURITY r

A Conltraclor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data recsived ynder this Contract, ané any

derivative data or files, as follows:

.. Ci
V5. Last ugdite 1008118  ExhibK . Contastorinitials ,
DHHS Infarmation :
Secyrity Requirainents 11 ;’ 9! 202 2 .
Paga 50! 8 Date

- ' 1.

The Conbractor will maintain proper security <ontrols: 1o protect Depariment
confidential information collected, processed, managsd, andior stored I the delivery -

of confracted services,

The Contraclor will maintain policies and procedures o protect Department
confidential information throughout the information. itfecyﬁia where appiacab &, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure desiriction) regardigss of the

media used to store the data (i ¢., taps, disk; papér, eic)
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1.

" The Contractor will maintain appropriate authant%catwn and access tontrols to

contracior systenis that collect, transmit, or store Departinent confidential mfermatm

where applicable.

The Contractor will ensure proper security momtormg capabil mes are In place to
detect potential security events thal can impact Stete of NH systems andlor

Department confidential information for contractor provided systems

The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and edutation. for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidenitial infor"m_atian,

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting ihe services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain’ @
program o6f an infernal process or” processes .that defines specific secunﬁy

‘expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at & minimum

match those for the Contractor, :nciudmg breach natification fequirements.

“The Contractor will wark with the Department to sign.and comply wsm all appiacabla

State of New Hampshire and Department system accéss arid authofization policies
and pracedures, systems access forms, and computer use, agrﬁements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-confrattors prior to
system access being authonzad ’

Iif the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 180.103, the Cantractor will execite a HIPAA Business Assoc;aate Agreement
(BAA} with the Department and is responsible for masntammg mmpitamce with the
agrasmant, ,

The Centractor will work with the Departmeni at' iis request fo com;)iete a System
Mariagemént Survey. The purpose of the survey is 1o enable the Departinent and
Contractor to: monitor for any changes In risks, thieats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. 'I‘he survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agregment by
the Contractor, or the Depariment may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

. The Contractor will not store, knowingly of unknomngiy, any State of New Hampshire

or Department data offshoré or gulside the boundaries of the United Statés unless
prior express written consent iz obtained from the Information Seewnty Oifice
lzadership member within the Department.

Data Security Breach Liabilty. In the event of any security breach Contracior shall
make efforts to investigate ‘the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent fulure breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The' State shall recover from the Contragtor all costs of rasponse and recovery fiom

1
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12.

the breach, ‘including but not limited to; credit monitaring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services nécessary due to

the br&ach

Contractor must, comp%y with all applicable statutes and regulations regarmng the
privacy and securfty of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects

-maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a leve! and scope that is not Jess

than the level.and scope of requiréments applicable to federal.agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions -of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 5523), DHHS
P:wacy Act Regula!ions {45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 180 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable heaith

' _rmormahcn and as applicable under State law. -

13,

14,

1B.

18,

Contractor agrees to estabhsh and mai ntam appfopriate administrative, technwa and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
ptevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a. level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirtements
ostablished by the State of New Hampshire, Departmant of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:iwww.nh.govidoitivendor/iridex.htm
for the -Department of Information Technology policies, gui idelings, standards, and

procurement information refating to vendors.

Conffactor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will netify the State’s Privacy Officer and the
State’s Securrty Officer of any securzty breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section Vi, This includes a confidential information breach, - -computer
sectrity incident, or suspected breach which affests or includes any State of New
Hampshire syslems’that connect to the State of New Hampahzre network.

Contractor must restnst access to the Confidential Data oblained under this
Contract 10 onfy those authorized End Users who need such DHHES Data to
perform thelr official dulies in connection with purposes identified in this Contract,

 Tha Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

& ‘comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV 'A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential information that is fumnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure,

b. J.safeguard this information at alf times,

c. -ensure that Japtops and other electronic devices/media containing PHY, P,
PFlare encrypted and password-protected.

d. 'sent emails mntaznmg Confidential Information only if. encryoled and being
sent to and baing received by email addresses of persons- authorized to
regaive such information.

[.%
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@. limil disclostire of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidentiai Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable’ data derived froin DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, elc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmi! the Confidential Data, mchdsng any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest; or when
stored on portablé media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials {user name and password) must not be
‘shared with anyone End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or mdlrecﬁy through
athird party app!scatlon

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections o monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and sscurity requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
" and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contracl.

1.OSS REPORTING

The Contracter must noiify the State’s Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Sscuriy incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses -provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency’s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 308. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and pracedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Cuntractor will:

1. Identify Incidents; _
" 2, Delermine if personaiiy identifiable infarmation is involved in incidents;
3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37,
4

. - Identify and convene a core response group fo determine the risk level of incidents
. and daterming risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exbiibit K Contrzctof Inilials
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach nofification methods, timing, source, and cofitents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach nofice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed -and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 358-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov
B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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